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                         PART I.  FINANCIAL INFORMATION

ITEM 1.  FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.

                                IDEX CORPORATION

                           CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
                (IN THOUSANDS EXCEPT SHARE AND PER SHARE AMOUNTS)
                                   (UNAUDITED)

                                                         MARCH 31, 2007   DECEMBER 31, 2006
                                                         --------------   -----------------

ASSETS
Current assets
  Cash and cash equivalents............................    $   77,500         $   77,941
  Receivables, less allowance for doubtful accounts of
     $4,253 at March 31, 2007 and $3,545 at December
     31, 2006..........................................       196,336            166,485
  Inventories..........................................       169,668            160,687
  Assets held for sale.................................           852                829
  Other current assets.................................        21,803             11,966
                                                           ----------         ----------
     Total current assets..............................       466,159            417,908
Property, plant and equipment -- net...................       167,278            165,949
Goodwill...............................................       927,495            912,600
Intangible assets -- net...............................       180,775            171,363
Other noncurrent assets................................         2,533              3,001
                                                           ----------         ----------
     Total assets......................................    $1,744,240         $1,670,821
                                                           ==========         ==========

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities
  Trade accounts payable...............................    $   87,332         $   75,444
  Accrued expenses.....................................        91,794             95,170
  Short-term borrowings................................       158,489              8,210
  Liabilities held for sale............................           229                373
  Dividends payable....................................            --              8,055
                                                           ----------         ----------
     Total current liabilities.........................       337,844            187,252
Long-term borrowings...................................       217,900            353,770
Deferred income taxes..................................       109,293            100,316
Other noncurrent liabilities...........................        50,437             50,211
                                                           ----------         ----------
     Total liabilities.................................       715,474            691,549
                                                           ----------         ----------
Commitment and contingencies
Shareholders' equity
  Preferred stock:
     Authorized: 5,000,000 shares, $.01 per share par
       value; Issued: None.............................            --                 --
  Common stock:
     Authorized: 150,000,000 shares, $.01 per share par
       value Issued: 54,018,711 shares at March 31,
       2007 and 53,779,414 shares at December 31,
       2006............................................           540                538
  Additional paid-in capital...........................       336,578            326,968
  Retained earnings....................................       674,042            638,579
  Pension liability adjustments........................       (25,716)           (26,309)
  Cumulative translation adjustment....................        57,606             52,295
  Treasury stock at cost: 92,118 shares at March 31,
     2007 and 82,255 shares at December 31, 2006.......        (3,750)            (3,248)
  Unearned compensation................................       (10,534)            (9,551)
                                                           ----------         ----------
     Total shareholders' equity........................     1,028,766            979,272
                                                           ----------         ----------
     Total liabilities and shareholders' equity........    $1,744,240         $1,670,821
                                                           ==========         ==========

Source: IDEX CORP /DE/, 10-Q, May 07, 2007 Powered by Morningstar® Document Research℠



                 See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

                                        1

Source: IDEX CORP /DE/, 10-Q, May 07, 2007 Powered by Morningstar® Document Research℠



                        IDEX CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

                      CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
                     (IN THOUSANDS EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS)
                                   (UNAUDITED)

                                                               FIRST QUARTER ENDED
                                                                    MARCH 31,
                                                               -------------------
                                                                 2007       2006
                                                               --------   --------

Net sales....................................................  $333,268   $266,388
Cost of sales................................................   193,604    156,255
                                                               --------   --------
Gross profit.................................................   139,664    110,133
Selling, general and administrative expenses.................    78,112     62,355
                                                               --------   --------
Operating income.............................................    61,552     47,778
Other income -- net..........................................       573         11
Interest expense.............................................     6,379      2,941
                                                               --------   --------
Income from continuing operations before income taxes........    55,746     44,848
Provision for income taxes...................................    18,915     15,267
                                                               --------   --------
Income from continuing operations............................    36,831     29,581
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of tax.......      (164)       497
                                                               --------   --------
Net income...................................................  $ 36,667   $ 30,078
                                                               ========   ========
Basic earnings per common share:
Continuing operations........................................  $   0.69   $   0.56
Discontinued operations......................................        --       0.01
                                                               --------   --------
Net income...................................................  $   0.69   $   0.57
                                                               ========   ========
Diluted earnings per common share:
Continuing operations........................................  $   0.68   $   0.55
Discontinued operations......................................     (0.01)      0.01
                                                               --------   --------
Net income...................................................  $   0.67   $   0.56
                                                               ========   ========
Share data:
Basic weighted average common shares outstanding.............    53,509     52,637
Diluted weighted average common shares outstanding...........    54,451     53,857
Basic earnings per common share: (adjusted for announced
stock split- See Note 16) Continuing operations..............  $   0.46   $   0.37
Discontinued operations......................................        --       0.01
                                                               --------   --------
Net income...................................................  $   0.46   $   0.38
                                                               ========   ========
Diluted earnings per common share: (adjusted for announced
  stock split- See Note 16)
Continuing operations........................................  $   0.45   $   0.37
Discontinued operations......................................        --         --
                                                               --------   --------
Net income...................................................  $   0.45   $   0.37
                                                               ========   ========
Share data: (adjusted for announced stock split- See Note 16)
Basic weighted average common shares outstanding.............    80,264     78,956
Diluted weighted average common shares outstanding...........    81,677     80,786

                 See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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                        IDEX CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

                 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
                (IN THOUSANDS EXCEPT SHARE AND PER SHARE AMOUNTS)
                                   (UNAUDITED)

                               COMMON STOCK &
                                 ADDITIONAL                PENSION     CUMULATIVE                              TOTAL
                                   PAID-IN     RETAINED   LIABILITY   TRANSLATION  TREASURY    UNEARNED    SHAREHOLDERS'
                                   CAPITAL     EARNINGS  ADJUSTMENTS   ADJUSTMENT    STOCK   COMPENSATION      EQUITY
                               --------------  --------  -----------  -----------  --------  ------------  -------------

Balance, December 31, 2006...     $327,506     $638,579    $(26,309)    $52,295     $(3,248)   $ (9,551)     $  979,272
                                  --------     --------    --------     -------     -------    --------      ----------
Net income...................                    36,667                                                          36,667
Other comprehensive income,
  net of tax
  Cumulative translation
     adjustment..............                                             5,311                                   5,311
  Amortization of periodic
     pension cost............                                   593                                                 593
                                                                                                             ----------
  Other comprehensive
     income..................                                                                                     5,904
                                                                                                             ----------
     Comprehensive income....                                                                                    42,571
                                                                                                             ----------
Issuance of 198,047 shares of
  common stock from exercise
  of stock options and
  deferred compensation
  plans......................        7,726                                                                        7,726
Issuance of 12,250 shares of
  restricted common stock....        1,886                                                       (1,886)             --
Amortization of restricted
  common stock award.........                                                                       903             903
Restricted shares surrendered
  for tax withholdings.......                                                          (502)                       (502)
Cumulative effect of change
  in accounting for
  uncertainties in income
  taxes (FIN No. 48 -- see
  Note 14)...................                    (1,204)                                                         (1,204)
                                  --------     --------    --------     -------     -------    --------      ----------
Balance, March 31, 2007......     $337,118     $674,042    $(25,716)    $57,606     $(3,750)   $(10,534)     $1,028,766
                                  --------     --------    --------     -------     -------    --------      ----------

                 See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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                        IDEX CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

                      CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
                                 (IN THOUSANDS)
                                   (UNAUDITED)

                                                                     FIRST QUARTER
                                                                    ENDED MARCH 31,
                                                                  -------------------
                                                                    2007       2006
                                                                  --------   --------

Cash flows from operating activities of continuing operations
Net Income......................................................  $ 36,667   $ 30,078
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by
  operating activities:
  Income (loss) from discontinued operations....................       164       (498)
  Depreciation and amortization.................................     7,125      6,026
  Amortization of intangible assets.............................     2,014        267
  Amortization of debt issuance expenses........................       115        114
  Stock-based compensation expense..............................     2,444      2,416
  Deferred income taxes.........................................    (1,763)     5,477
  Excess tax benefit from stock-based compensation..............    (1,784)    (2,543)
  Changes in (net of the effect from acquisitions):
     Receivables................................................   (21,965)   (16,375)
     Inventories................................................    (4,101)    (3,679)
     Trade accounts payable.....................................     8,253      6,720
     Accrued expenses...........................................    (5,947)     1,744
  Other -- net..................................................    (5,553)    (5,704)
                                                                  --------   --------
       Net cash flows from operating activities of continuing
          operations............................................    15,669     24,043
Cash flows from investing activities of continuing operations
  Additions to property, plant and equipment....................    (5,418)    (4,015)
  Acquisition of businesses, net of cash acquired...............   (24,917)   (27,255)
                                                                  --------   --------
       Net cash flows from investing activities of continuing
          operations............................................   (30,335)   (31,270)
Cash flows from financing activities of continuing operations
  Borrowings under credit facilities for acquisitions...........    12,885         --
  Net repayments of other long-term debt........................      (362)      (599)
  Dividends paid................................................    (8,055)    (6,321)
  Distributions from discontinued operations....................      (331)       451
  Proceeds from stock option exercises..........................     4,268      6,163
  Excess tax benefit from stock-based compensation..............     1,784      2,543
  Other -- net..................................................     1,269       (504)
                                                                  --------   --------
       Net cash flows from financing activities of continuing
          operations............................................    11,458      1,733
Cash flows from discontinued operations
  Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities of
     discontinued operations....................................      (329)       480
  Net cash used in investing activities of discontinued
     operations.................................................        --       (106)
  Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities of
     discontinued operations....................................       331       (451)
                                                                  --------   --------
       Net cash flows from discontinued operations..............        (2)       (77)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents....     2,767       (608)
                                                                  --------   --------
Net decrease in cash............................................      (439)    (6,179)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year..................    77,943     77,290
                                                                  --------   --------
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period......................    77,504     71,111
                                                                  --------   --------
Less-cash, end of period-discontinued operations................         4         12
                                                                  --------   --------
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period-continuing
  operations....................................................  $ 77,500   $ 71,099
                                                                  ========   ========

Source: IDEX CORP /DE/, 10-Q, May 07, 2007 Powered by Morningstar® Document Research℠



SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Cash paid for:
  Interest......................................................  $  8,843   $  5,410
  Income taxes..................................................    12,919      5,796
Significant non-cash activities:
  Issuance of restricted stock..................................  $  1,886   $     --
  Debt acquired with acquisition of business....................     1,653      6,996
  Capital expenditures included in accounts payable.............       365         --

                 See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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                        IDEX CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

                   NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
                                   (UNAUDITED)

1.  BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

     The consolidated financial statements of IDEX Corporation ("IDEX" or the
"Company") have been prepared in accordance with the instructions to Form 10-Q
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. The statements are
unaudited but include all adjustments, consisting only of recurring items,
except as noted, which the Company considers necessary for a fair presentation
of the information set forth herein. The results of operations for the three
months ended March 31, 2007 are not necessarily indicative of the results to be
expected for the entire year.

     The consolidated financial statements and Management's Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations should be read in
conjunction with the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2006.

2.  ACQUISITIONS

     On February 14, 2007, the Company acquired Faure Herman SA, a leading
provider of ultrasonic and helical turbine flow meters used in the custody
transfer and control of high value fluids and gases. Headquartered in La Ferte
Bernard, France, Faure Herman has sales offices in Europe and North America,
with annual revenues of approximately $22 million. Faure Herman will be operated
as part of the company's Liquid Controls business within its Fluid & Metering
Technologies segment. IDEX acquired Faure Herman for an aggregate purchase price
of $26.1 million, consisting of $24.4 million in cash and the assumption of
approximately $1.7 million of debt. The cash payment was partially financed by
borrowings under the Company's credit facility. Goodwill and intangible assets
recognized as part of this transaction were $11.8 million and $11.0 million,
respectively. The $11.8 million of goodwill is not deductible for tax purposes.

     The purchase price for Faure Herman, including transaction costs, has been
allocated to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on estimated fair
values at the date of the acquisitions. The purchase price allocation is
preliminary and further refinements may be necessary pending finalization of
asset valuations.

     The results of operations for this acquisition have been included within
the financial results from the date of the acquisition. The Company does not
consider this acquisition to be material to its results of operations for any of
the periods presented.

3.  DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

     On July 11, 2006, IDEX sold Lubriquip, its lubricant dispensing business
that operated as part of IDEX's Dispensing Equipment segment.

     During the third quarter of 2006, the Company determined that Halox, its
chemical and electrochemical systems product line operating as a unit of
Pulsafeeder in IDEX's Fluid & Metering Technologies segment, met the criteria to
be classified as a discontinued operation. The Company is marketing the Halox
operation and conducting other actions with the intention to complete the sale
within one year.

     Financial information for all periods presented has been restated to
present the operating results of Halox as discontinued operations, while the
operating results for the three months ended March 31, 2006 also include
Lubriquip as discontinued operations.
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                        IDEX CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

           NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS --  (CONTINUED)
                                   (UNAUDITED)

     Summarized results of the Company's discontinued operations are as follows:

                                                             FIRST QUARTER
                                                              ENDED MARCH
                                                                  31,
                                                            --------------
                                                             2007    2006
                                                            -----   ------
                                                            (IN THOUSANDS)

Revenue...................................................  $ 621   $8,683
                                                            =====   ======
Income (loss) from discontinued operations before income
  taxes...................................................   (252)     725
Income tax benefit (provision)............................     88     (228)
                                                            -----   ------
Income (loss) from discontinued operations................  $(164)  $  497
                                                            =====   ======

     Total assets and liabilities expected to be transferred as part of the sale
of discontinued operations held for sale at March 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006
were as follows:

                                                        MARCH 31,   DECEMBER 31,
                                                           2007         2006
                                                        ---------   ------------
                                                             (IN THOUSANDS)

Cash and cash equivalents.............................     $  4         $  2
Receivables, net......................................      382          424
Inventory.............................................      325          272
Other current assets..................................       26           20
Property, plant and equipment, net equivalents........      115          111
                                                           ----         ----
  Assets held for sale................................     $852         $829
                                                           ====         ====
Accounts payable......................................     $127         $154
Other liabilities.....................................      102          219
                                                           ----         ----
     Liabilities held for sale........................     $229         $373
                                                           ====         ====

4.  BUSINESS SEGMENTS

     Information on IDEX's business segments from continuing operations is
presented below, based on the nature of products and services offered. IDEX
evaluates performance based on several factors, of which operating income is the
primary financial measure. Intersegment sales are accounted for at fair value as
if the sales were to third parties.
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                        IDEX CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

           NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS --  (CONTINUED)
                                   (UNAUDITED)

                                                         FIRST QUARTER ENDED
                                                              MARCH 31,
                                                         -------------------
                                                           2007       2006
                                                         --------   --------
                                                            (IN THOUSANDS)

Net sales
  Fluid & Metering Technologies:
     External customers................................  $136,302   $101,638
     Intersegment sales................................       404        282
                                                         --------   --------
       Total group sales...............................   136,706    101,920
                                                         --------   --------
  Health & Science Technologies:
     External customers................................    79,878     62,127
     Intersegment sales................................       842        894
                                                         --------   --------
       Total group sales...............................    80,720     63,021
                                                         --------   --------
  Dispensing Equipment:
     External customers................................    47,893     41,408
     Intersegment sales................................        --         --
                                                         --------   --------
       Total group sales...............................    47,893     41,408
                                                         --------   --------
  Fire & Safety/Diversified Products:
     External customers................................    69,195     61,215
     Intersegment sales................................         1          1
                                                         --------   --------
       Total group sales...............................    69,196     61,216
                                                         --------   --------
  Intersegment elimination.............................    (1,247)    (1,177)
                                                         --------   --------
       Total net sales.................................  $333,268   $266,388
                                                         ========   ========
Operating income
  Fluid & Metering Technologies........................  $ 29,751   $ 19,759
  Health & Science Technologies........................    13,863     12,280
  Dispensing Equipment.................................    11,704     10,330
  Fire & Safety/Diversified Products...................    15,358     13,655
  Corporate office and other...........................    (9,124)    (8,246)
                                                         --------   --------
          Total operating income.......................  $ 61,552   $ 47,778
                                                         ========   ========

5.  EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE

     Earnings per common share ("EPS") are computed by dividing net income by
the weighted average number of shares of common stock (basic) plus common stock
equivalents outstanding (diluted) during the period. Common stock equivalents
consist of stock options, which have been included in the calculation of
weighted average shares outstanding using the treasury stock method, unvested
restricted shares, and shares issuable in connection with
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                        IDEX CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

           NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS --  (CONTINUED)
                                   (UNAUDITED)

certain deferred compensation agreements ("DCUs"). Basic weighted average shares
reconciles to diluted weighted average shares as follows:

                                                             FIRST QUARTER
                                                            ENDED MARCH 31,
                                                            ---------------
                                                             2007     2006
(IN THOUSANDS)                                              ------   ------

Basic weighted average common shares outstanding..........  53,509   52,637
Dilutive effect of stock options, unvested restricted
  shares, and DCUs........................................     942    1,220
                                                            ------   ------
Diluted weighted average common shares outstanding........  54,451   53,857
                                                            ======   ======

     Options to purchase approximately .8 million and .6 million shares of
common stock as of March 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively, were not included in
the computation of diluted EPS because the exercise price was greater than the
average market price of the Company's common stock and, therefore, the effect of
their inclusion would be antidilutive.

6.  INVENTORIES

     The components of inventories as of March 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006
were:

                                                        MARCH 31, 2007   DECEMBER 31, 2006
                                                        --------------   -----------------
                                                                  (IN THOUSANDS)

Raw materials.........................................     $ 63,744           $ 63,360
Work-in-process.......................................       18,174             16,420
Finished goods........................................       87,750             80,907
                                                           --------           --------
  Total...............................................     $169,668           $160,687
                                                           ========           ========

     Inventories carried on a LIFO basis amounted to $140.7 million and $133.7
million at March 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006, respectively. The excess of
current cost over LIFO inventory value amounted to $3.4 million and $3.1 million
at March 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006 respectively.

7.  GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

     The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for the three months ended
March 31, 2007, by business group, were as follows:

                             FLUID & METERING   HEALTH & SCIENCE   DISPENSING      FIRE & SAFETY/
                               TECHNOLOGIES       TECHNOLOGIES      EQUIPMENT   DIVERSIFIED PRODUCTS     TOTAL
                             ----------------   ----------------   ----------   --------------------   --------
                                                               (IN THOUSANDS)

Balance at December 31,
  2006.....................      $304,464           $333,801        $128,457          $145,878         $912,600
Foreign currency
  translation..............           693                180             743               491            2,107
Acquisitions...............        11,791                 --              --                --           11,791

Source: IDEX CORP /DE/, 10-Q, May 07, 2007 Powered by Morningstar® Document Research℠



Acquisition adjustments....           949                 48              --                --              997
                                 --------           --------        --------          --------         --------
Balance at March 31, 2007..      $317,897           $334,029        $129,200          $146,369         $927,495
                                 ========           ========        ========          ========         ========
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                        IDEX CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

           NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS --  (CONTINUED)
                                   (UNAUDITED)

     The following table provides the gross carrying value and accumulated
amortization for each major class of intangible asset as of March 31, 2007 and
December 31, 2006:

                                          AT MARCH 31, 2007                  AT DECEMBER 31, 2006
                                       -----------------------             -----------------------
                                         GROSS                               GROSS
                                       CARRYING    ACCUMULATED   AVERAGE   CARRYING    ACCUMULATED
                                        AMOUNT    AMORTIZATION     LIFE     AMOUNT    AMORTIZATION
                                       --------   ------------   -------   --------   ------------
                                                              (IN THOUSANDS)

Amortizable intangible assets:
  Patents............................  $  8,550     $ (5,308)       10     $  8,508      $(5,171)
  Trade names........................    31,114       (1,649)       18       30,081       (1,224)
  Customer relationships.............    72,806       (2,600)       17       64,796       (1,609)
  Non-compete agreements.............     4,384       (1,305)        4        4,087         (702)
  Unpatented technology..............     7,268         (253)       16        4,727         (127)
  Other..............................     6,278         (610)        5        6,457         (560)
                                       --------     --------               --------      -------
     Total amortizable intangible
       assets........................   130,400      (11,725)               118,656       (9,393)
Banjo trade name.....................    62,100           --                 62,100           --
                                       --------     --------               --------      -------
Balance at March 31, 2007............  $192,500     $(11,725)              $180,756      $(9,393)
                                       ========     ========               ========      =======

8.  ACCRUED EXPENSES

     The components of accrued expenses as of March 31, 2007 and December 31,
2006 were:

                                                        MARCH 31,   DECEMBER 31,
                                                           2007         2006
                                                        ---------   ------------
                                                             (IN THOUSANDS)

Payroll and related items.............................   $33,418       $32,897
Management incentive compensation.....................     3,005        15,279
Income taxes payable..................................    16,506        10,897
Deferred income taxes.................................     1,262         1,359
Insurance.............................................    11,336        10,338
Other.................................................    26,267        24,400
                                                         -------       -------
  Total accrued expenses..............................   $91,794       $95,170
                                                         =======       =======

9.  BORROWINGS

     The $150.0 million of 6.875% Senior Notes due February 15, 2008 have been
reclassified from long-term borrowings to short-term borrowings.

10.  PREFERRED STOCK

     The Company had five million shares of preferred stock authorized but
unissued at March 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006.

11.  SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION

     Effective January 1, 2006, the Company adopted Statement of Financial
Accounting Standard (SFAS) No. 123R using the modified prospective method, and
thus did not restate any prior period amounts. Under this method, compensation
cost in the three months ending March 31, 2007 include the portion vesting in
the period for

Source: IDEX CORP /DE/, 10-Q, May 07, 2007 Powered by Morningstar® Document Research℠
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                        IDEX CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

           NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS --  (CONTINUED)
                                   (UNAUDITED)

(1) all share-based payments granted prior to, but not vested as of December 31,
2005, based on the grant date fair value estimated using the Black-Scholes
option-pricing model in accordance with the original provisions of SFAS No. 123
and (2) all share-based payments granted subsequent to December 31, 2005, based
on the grant date fair value estimated using the Binomial lattice option-pricing
model.

     Total compensation cost for stock options is as follows:

                                                             FIRST QUARTER
                                                            ENDED MARCH 31,
                                                            ---------------
                                                             2007     2006
                                                            ------   ------
                                                             (IN THOUSANDS)

General and administrative expenses.......................  $1,325   $1,515
Cost of goods sold........................................     216      223
                                                            ------   ------
Total expense before income taxes.........................   1,541    1,738
Income tax benefit........................................    (561)    (522)
                                                            ------   ------
Total expense after income taxes..........................  $  980   $1,216
                                                            ======   ======

     Total compensation cost for restricted stock is as follows:

                                                                  FIRST
                                                                 QUARTER
                                                               ENDED MARCH
                                                                   31,
                                                              ------------
                                                               2007   2006
                                                              -----   ----
                                                                   (IN
                                                               THOUSANDS)

General and administrative expenses.........................  $ 899   $678
Cost of goods sold..........................................      4     --
                                                              -----   ----
Total expense before income taxes...........................    903    678
Income tax benefit..........................................   (166)   (80)
                                                              -----   ----
Total expense after income taxes............................  $ 737   $598
                                                              =====   ====

     Recognition of compensation cost within the Statement of Operations is
consistent with recognition of cash compensation for the same employees, and
compensation cost capitalized as part of inventory was immaterial.

     As of March 31, 2007, there was $12.4 million of total unrecognized
compensation cost related to stock options that is expected to be recognized
over a weighted-average period of 1.3 years, and $7.7 million of total
unrecognized compensation cost related to restricted stock that is expected to
be recognized over a weighted-average period of 1.4 years.
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                        IDEX CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

           NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS --  (CONTINUED)
                                   (UNAUDITED)

12.  RETIREMENT BENEFITS

     The Company sponsors several qualified and nonqualified defined benefit and
defined contribution pension plans and other postretirement plans for its
employees. The following tables provide the components of net periodic benefit
cost for its major defined benefit plans and its other postretirement plans.

                                                               PENSION BENEFITS
                                                   ---------------------------------------
                                                        FIRST QUARTER ENDED MARCH 31,
                                                   ---------------------------------------
                                                          2007                 2006
                                                   ------------------   ------------------
                                                     U.S.    NON-U.S.     U.S.    NON-U.S.
                                                   -------   --------   -------   --------
                                                                (IN THOUSANDS)

Service cost.....................................  $   512     $ 221    $   744     $ 162
Interest cost....................................    1,062       386        945       282
Expected return on plan assets...................   (1,322)     (261)    (1,209)     (182)
Net amortization.................................      666       185        625       126
                                                   -------     -----    -------     -----
  Net periodic benefit cost......................  $   918     $ 531    $ 1,105     $ 388
                                                   =======     =====    =======     =====

                                                                 OTHER
                                                                BENEFITS
                                                              -----------
                                                                 FIRST
                                                                QUARTER
                                                              ENDED MARCH
                                                                  31,
                                                              -----------
                                                              2007   2006
                                                              ----   ----
                                                                  (IN
                                                               THOUSANDS)

Service cost................................................  $123   $110
Interest cost...............................................   325    319
Expected return on plan assets..............................    --     --
Net amortization............................................    83     57
                                                              ----   ----
  Net periodic benefit cost.................................  $531   $486
                                                              ====   ====

     The Company previously disclosed in its financial statements for the year
ended December 31, 2006, that it expected to contribute approximately $5.1
million to these pension plans and $1.3 million to its other postretirement
benefit plans in 2007. As of March 31, 2007, $.8 million of contributions have
been made to the pension plans and $.3 million has been made to its other
postretirement benefit plans. The Company presently anticipates contributing up
to an additional $5.3 million in 2007 to fund these pension plans and other
postretirement benefit plans.

13.  LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

     IDEX is a party to various legal proceedings arising in the ordinary course
of business, none of which is expected to have a material adverse effect on its
business, financial condition, results of operations or cash flows.

Source: IDEX CORP /DE/, 10-Q, May 07, 2007 Powered by Morningstar® Document Research℠



14.  INCOME TAXES

     The Company's provision for income taxes is based upon estimated annual tax
rates for the year applied to federal, state and foreign income. The provision
for income taxes increased to $18.9 million in the first quarter of 2007 from
$15.3 million in the first quarter of 2006. The effective tax rate decreased to
33.9% in the first quarter of 2007 from 34.0% in the first quarter of 2006.

     The Company and it subsidiaries file income tax returns in the U.S. federal
jurisdiction, and various state and foreign jurisdictions. Effective January 1,
2007, the Company adopted Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB")
Interpretation ("FIN") No. 48, "Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes -- an
interpretation of
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                        IDEX CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

           NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS --  (CONTINUED)
                                   (UNAUDITED)

SFAS No. 109." In accordance with FIN No. 48, the Company recognized a
cumulative-effect adjustment of $1.2 million, increasing its liability for
unrecognized tax benefits, interest, and penalties and reducing the January 1,
2007 balance of retained earnings.

     At January 1, 2007, the Company had $6.6 million in unrecognized tax
benefits, the recognition of which would have an effect of $5.8 million on the
effective tax rate. Included in the balance of unrecognized tax benefits at
January 1, 2007, is between $.5 million and $.8 million related to tax positions
for which it is reasonably possible that the total amounts could significantly
change during the next twelve months. This range represents a decrease in
unrecognized tax benefits and depends on the ultimate closure date of various
examinations.

     The Company recognizes accrued interest and penalties related to
unrecognized tax benefits in income tax expense. At January 1, 2007, the Company
had accrued $.9 million and $.2 million for the potential payment of interest
and penalties, respectively.

     As of January 1, 2007 the Company is subject to U.S. Federal income tax
examinations for the tax years 2000 through 2006, however the 2001 and 2002 tax
years are limited to adjustments to the research and development credit only.
The Company is subject to non-U.S. income tax examinations for the tax years
2002 through 2006. In addition, the Company is subject to state and local income
tax examinations for the tax years 2002 through 2006 in jurisdictions for which
tax returns have been filed.

     During the first quarter of 2007, unrecognized tax benefits were reduced by
$1.7 million due to the resolution of various income tax audits, of which $.4
million reduced the effective tax rate.

15.  NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

     In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, "Fair Value Measurements,"
which defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and expands disclosures
about fair value measurements. This statement is effective for fiscal periods
beginning after November 15, 2007, and does not require any new fair value
measurements. Management is currently evaluating the requirements of SFAS No.
157, and has not yet determined the impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

     In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, "The Fair Value Option for
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities -- Including an Amendment of FASB
Statement No. 115". SFAS No. 159 permits entities to choose to measure many
financial instruments and certain other items at fair value. SFAS No. 159 is
effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. The Company is in
the process of evaluating the impact this pronouncement may have on its results
of operations and financial condition.

16.  SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

     On April 4, 2007, the Company's Board of Directors authorized a 20 percent
increase in the Company's regular quarterly cash dividend and declared a 3-for-2
split of the Company's common stock. The regular quarterly cash dividend will
increase to $0.18 per common share (or $0.12 per post-split share), payable
April 30, 2007, to shareholders of record as of April 16, 2007.

     The 3-for-2 stock split of IDEX common shares, which will be effected in
the form of a 50 percent stock dividend, will result in the issuance of one
additional share of IDEX common stock for every two shares owned as of the
record date. The new shares are payable on May 21, 2007, to shareholders of
record as of May 7, 2007. Par value of common stock remained at $.01 per share.
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ITEM 2.  MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS
         OF OPERATIONS.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT UNDER THE PRIVATE SECURITIES LITIGATION REFORM ACT

     The "Historical Overview and Outlook" and the "Liquidity and Capital
Resources" sections of this management's discussion and analysis of our
financial condition and operations contain forward-looking statements within the
meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Section
21E of the Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. These statements may relate to,
among other things, capital expenditures, cost reductions, cash flow, and
operating improvements and are indicated by words or phrases such as
"anticipate," "estimate," "plans," "expects," "projects," "should," "will,"
"management believes," "the company believes," "we believe," "the company
intends" and similar words or phrases. These statements are subject to inherent
uncertainties and risks that could cause actual results to differ materially
from those anticipated at the date of this filing. The risks and uncertainties
include, but are not limited to, the following: economic and political
consequences resulting from terrorist attacks and wars; levels of industrial
activity and economic conditions in the U.S. and other countries around the
world; pricing pressures and other competitive factors, and levels of capital
spending in certain industries -- all of which could have a material impact on
our order rates and results, particularly in light of the low levels of order
backlogs we typically maintain; our ability to make acquisitions and to
integrate and operate acquired businesses on a profitable basis; the
relationship of the U.S. dollar to other currencies and its impact on pricing
and cost competitiveness; political and economic conditions in foreign countries
in which we operate; interest rates; capacity utilization and the effect this
has on costs; labor markets; market conditions and material costs; and
developments with respect to contingencies, such as litigation and environmental
matters. The forward-looking statements included here are only made as of the
date of this report, and we undertake no obligation to publicly update them to
reflect subsequent events or circumstances. Investors are cautioned not to rely
unduly on forward-looking statements when evaluating the information presented
here.

HISTORICAL OVERVIEW AND OUTLOOK

     IDEX Corporation ("IDEX") or the ("Company") is an applied solutions
company specializing in fluid and metering technologies, health and science
technologies, dispensing equipment, and fire, safety and other diversified
products built to its customers' specifications. Our products are sold in niche
markets to a wide range of industries throughout the world. Accordingly, our
businesses are affected by levels of industrial activity and economic conditions
in the U.S. and in other countries where we do business and by the relationship
of the U.S. dollar to other currencies. Levels of capacity utilization and
capital spending in certain industries and overall industrial activity are among
the factors that influence the demand for our products.

     IDEX consists of four reportable segments: Fluid & Metering Technologies,
Health & Science Technologies, Dispensing Equipment and Fire &
Safety/Diversified Products.

     The Fluid & Metering Technologies Group produces pumps, compressors, flow
meters, and related controls for the movement of liquids and gases in a diverse
range of end markets from industrial infrastructure to food and beverage. The
Health & Science Technologies Group produces a wide variety of small scale,
highly accurate pumps, valves, fittings and medical devices, as well as
compressors used in medical, dental and industrial applications. The Dispensing
Equipment Group produces highly engineered equipment for dispensing, metering
and mixing colorants, paints, inks and dyes, hair colorants and other personal
care products, as well as refinishing equipment. The Fire &Safety/Diversified
Products Group produces firefighting pumps, rescue tools, lifting bags and other
components and systems for the fire and rescue industry; and engineered
stainless steel banding and clamping devices used in a variety of industrial and
commercial applications.

     IDEX has a history of achieving above-average operating margins. Our
operating margins have exceeded the average operating margin for the companies
that comprise the Value Line Composite Index (VLCI) every year since 1988. We
view the VLCI operating performance statistics as a proxy for an average
industrial company. Our operating margins are influenced by, among other things,
utilization of facilities as sales volumes change and inclusion of newly
acquired businesses.
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     Some of our key 2007 financial highlights for the three months ended March
31, 2007 were as follows:

     - Orders were $362.8 million, 23% higher than a year ago; base business
       orders -- excluding acquisitions and foreign currency translation -- were
       up 9%.

     - Sales of $333.3 million rose 25%; base business sales -- excluding
       acquisitions and foreign currency translation -- were up 10%.

     - Gross margins improved 60 basis points to 41.9% of sales, while operating
       margins at 18.5% were 60 basis points higher than a year ago.

     - Income from continuing operations increased 25% to $36.8 million.

     - Diluted EPS from continuing operations of $0.68 was 13 cents ahead of the
       same period 2006.

     - Net income increased 22% to $36.7 million.

     - Diluted EPS of $0.67 was 11 cents ahead of the same period of 2006.

     Our business units continue to deliver profitable sales growth as a result
of new product initiatives and market initiatives and our on-going commitment to
operational excellence. During the first three months of the year, organic sales
growth was 10 percent, reflecting particular strength in Fluid & Metering
Technologies at 12 percent and Dispensing Equipment at 10 percent. As we move
forward, we believe we are well positioned in attractive product segments buoyed
by strong underlying industry fundamentals. We are leveraging commercial and
operational excellence to effectively serve our customers, expand our market
position and generate profitable growth.

     The following forward-looking statements are qualified by the cautionary
statement under the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act set forth above.

     As a short-cycle business, our performance is reliant upon the current pace
of incoming orders, and we have limited visibility on future business
conditions. We believe IDEX is well positioned for earnings expansion. This is
based on our favorable cost structure resulting from our operational excellence
discipline, our investment in new products, applications and global markets, and
our pursuit of strategic acquisitions to help drive IDEX's longer term
profitable growth.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

     For purposes of this discussion and analysis section, reference is made to
the table on the following page and the Company's Consolidated Statements of
Operations included in Item 1. During the third quarter 2006, the Company
determined that Halox, its chemical and electrochemical systems business, met
the criteria to be classified as a discontinued operation. During the second
quarter, the Company determined that Lubriquip, its lubricant dispensing
business, met the criteria to be classified as a discontinued operation and was
subsequently sold July 11, 2006. Financial information for all periods presented
has been restated to present the operating results of Halox as discontinued
operations, while the operating results for the three months ended March 31,
2006 have been restated to present Lubriquip as discontinued operations.

  PERFORMANCE IN THE THREE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2007 COMPARED WITH THE SAME
  PERIOD OF 2006

     For the three months ended March 31, 2007, orders, sales and profits were
higher than the comparable three months of last year. New orders totaled $362.8
million, 23% higher than the same period last year. Excluding the impact of
foreign currency translation and the five acquisitions made since the beginning
of 2006 (JUN-AIR -- February 2006, EPI -- May 2006, Banjo -- October 2006,
Toptech -- December 2006 and Faure Herman -- February 2007), base business
orders were 9% higher than the same period one year ago.

     Sales in the three months ended March 31, 2007 were $333.3 million, a 25%
improvement from the comparable period last year. The increase was driven by
base business shipments of 10%, acquisitions accounted for 13% and foreign
currency translation contributed 2%. Sales to international customers from base
businesses represented approximately 44% of total sales in the current period of
both 2007 and 2006.
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     During the quarter, Fluid & Metering Technologies contributed 41% of sales
and 42% of operating income; Health & Science Technologies accounted for 24% of
sales and 20% of operating income; Dispensing Equipment accounted for 14% of
sales and 16% of operating income; and Fire & Safety/Diversified Products
represented 21% of sales and 22% of operating income.

     Fluid & Metering Technologies Group sales of $136.7 million for the three
months ended March 31, 2007 rose $34.8 million, or 34% compared with 2006,
reflecting 12% base business growth, 21% for acquisitions and a 1% favorable
impact from foreign currency translation. In the first quarter of 2007, base
business sales grew approximately 7% domestically and 16% internationally. Base
business sales to customers outside the U.S. were approximately 43% of total
group sales during the first quarter of 2007 compared with 41% in the comparable
quarter of 2006.

     Health & Science Technologies Group sales of $80.7 million increased $17.7
million, or 28%, in the first quarter of 2007 compared with last year's first
quarter. This increase was attributed to the JUN-AIR and EPI acquisitions which
contributed 21% and an increase in base business volume of 7%. In the first
quarter of 2007, base business sales increased 7% domestically and 5%
internationally. Base business sales to customers outside the U.S. were
approximately 33% of total group sales in the first quarter of both 2007 and
2006.

     Dispensing Equipment Group sales of $47.9 million increased $6.5 million,
or 16%, in the first quarter of 2007 compared with 2006. This increase reflects
a 10% increase in base business volume and 6% from favorable foreign currency
translation. In the first quarter of 2007, base business sales increased 18%
domestically and increased 4% internationally. Base business sales to customers
outside the U.S. were approximately 58% of total group sales in the first
quarter of 2007, compared with 65% in the comparable quarter of 2006.

     Fire & Safety/Diversified Products Group sales of $69.2 million increased
$8.0 million, or 13%, in the first quarter of 2007 compared with 2006. This
increase reflects a 9% increase in base business volume, with an additional 4%
of favorable foreign currency translation. In the first quarter of 2007, base
business sales increased 8% domestically and 9% internationally. Base business
sales to customers outside the U.S. were approximately 45% of total group sales
in the first quarter of both 2007 and 2006.
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                                                                THREE MONTHS ENDED
                                                                   MARCH 31,(1)
                                                               -------------------
                                                                 2007       2006
                                                               --------   --------
                                                                  (IN THOUSANDS)

Fluid & Metering Technologies
  Net sales..................................................  $136,706   $101,920
  Operating income(2)........................................    29,751     19,759
  Operating margin...........................................      21.8%      19.4%
  Depreciation and amortization..............................  $  3,549   $  2,233
  Capital expenditures.......................................     2,636      1,132
Health & Science Technologies
  Net sales..................................................  $ 80,720   $ 63,021
  Operating income(2)........................................    13,863     12,280
  Operating margin...........................................      17.2%      19.5%
  Depreciation and amortization..............................  $  2,569   $  1,399
  Capital expenditures.......................................     1,651        877
Dispensing Equipment
  Net sales..................................................  $ 47,893   $ 41,408
  Operating income(2)........................................    11,704     10,330
  Operating margin...........................................      24.4%      24.9%
  Depreciation and amortization..............................  $    547   $  1,013
  Capital expenditures.......................................       292        659
Fire & Safety/Diversified Products
  Net sales..................................................  $ 69,196   $ 61,216
  Operating income(2)........................................    15,358     13,655
  Operating margin...........................................      22.2%      22.3%
  Depreciation and amortization..............................  $  1,525   $  1,538
  Capital expenditures.......................................       886      1,138
Company
  Net sales..................................................  $333,268   $266,388
  Operating income(2)........................................    61,552     47,778
  Operating margin...........................................      18.5%      17.9%
  Depreciation and amortization(3)...........................  $  9,139   $  6,293
  Capital expenditures.......................................     5,783      4,015

--------

(1) First quarter data includes acquisition of Banjo (October 2006), Toptech
    (December 2006) and Faure Herman (February 2007) in the Fluid & Metering
    Technologies Group, JUN-AIR (February 2006) and EPI (May 2006) in the Health
    & Science Technologies Group and Airshore (January 2006) in the Fire &
    Safety/Diversified Products Group from the dates of acquisition.

(2) Group operating income excludes unallocated corporate operating expenses.

(3) Excludes amortization of debt issuance expenses and unearned stock
    compensation.

     Gross profit of $139.7 million, in the first quarter of 2007, increased
$29.5 million, or 27%, from 2006. Gross profit as a percent of sales was 41.9%
in the first quarter of 2007 and 41.3% 2006. The improved gross margins
primarily reflect volume leverage and the Company's strategic sourcing and other
operational excellence initiatives.

     Selling, general and administrative (SG&A) expenses increased to $78.1
million in the first quarter of 2007 from $62.4 million in 2006. First quarter
SG&A expenses were unfavorably impacted by $1.0 million of severance cost
associated with the Dispensing segment's international operations. In addition,
higher total SG&A expenses
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reflect acquisitions, volume-related expenses, and reinvestment in the business
to drive organic growth. As a percent of sales, SG&A expenses were 23.4% for
both 2007 and 2006.

     Operating income increased $13.8 million, or 29%, to $61.6 in the first
quarter of 2007 from $47.8 million in 2006, primarily reflecting higher volumes,
partially offset by increased SG&A expenses. First quarter operating margins
were 18.5% of sales, 60 basis points higher than the first quarter of 2006. The
improvement from last year resulted from higher gross margins. In the Fluid &
Metering Technologies Group, operating income of $29.8 million and operating
margins of 21.8% in the first quarter of 2007 were up from the $19.8 million and
19.4% recorded in 2006 principally due to strong global demand and acquisitions.
Operating income for the Health & Science Technologies Group of $13.9 million
was up from the $12.3 million recorded in 2006 principally due to volume.
Operating margins within Health & Science Technologies Group of 17.2% in the
current quarter were down from 19.5% in 2006 primarily due to acquisitions and
growth-related investments in the Company's medical product lines. Operating
income for the Dispensing Equipment Group of $11.7 million was up from the $10.3
million recorded in 2006 mainly due to volume leverage and the impact of our
operational excellence initiatives. Operating margins within Dispensing
Equipment Group of 24.4% in the current quarter were down from 24.9% in 2006
primarily due to $1.0 million of severance-related expenses in Dispensing's
international operations. Operating income in the Fire & Safety/Diversified
Products Group of $15.4 million was higher than $13.7 recorded in 2006, due
primarily to increased volume. Operating margins within Fire &
Safety/Diversified Products Group of 22.2% in the current quarter were down from
22.3% in 2006, primarily due to product mix.

     Other income in the first quarter of 2007 increased $.6 million compared
with 2006 primarily due to an increase in interest income.

     IDEX's provision for income taxes is based upon estimated annual tax rates
for the year applied to federal, state and foreign income. The provision for
income taxes increased to $18.9 million in the first quarter of 2007 from $15.3
million in 2006. The effective tax rate decreased slightly to 33.9% in the
current quarter from 34.0% in the first quarter of 2006.

     Income from continuing operations for the current quarter was $36.8
million, 25% higher than the $29.6 million earned in the first quarter of 2006.
Diluted earnings per share from continuing operations in the first quarter of
2007 of $.68 increased $.13, or 24%, compared with the first quarter of 2006.

     Net income for the current quarter of $36.7 million, which included a loss
from discontinued operations of $.2 million, increased from the $30.1 million
earned in the first quarter of 2006, which included income from discontinued
operations of $.5 million. Diluted earnings per share in the first quarter of
2007 of $.67, which included a loss from discontinued operations of $.01,
increased $.11, or 20%, compared with the first quarter of 2006.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

     At March 31, 2007, working capital was $128.3 million and our current ratio
was 1.4 to 1. Cash flows from operating activities decreased $8.3 million, or
35%, to $15.7 million in the first three months of 2007 mainly due to an
increase in working capital requirements.

     Cash flows provided from operations were more than adequate to fund capital
expenditures of $5.4 million and $4.0 million in the first three months of 2007
and 2006, respectively. Capital expenditures were generally for machinery and
equipment that improved productivity and tooling to support IDEX's global
sourcing initiatives, although a portion was for business system technology and
replacement of equipment and facilities. Management believes that IDEX has ample
capacity in its plants and equipment to meet expected needs for future growth in
the intermediate term.

     The Company acquired Faure Herman in February 2007 for cash consideration
of $24.4 million and the assumption of approximately $1.7 million in debt. The
cash payment was partially financed by borrowings under the Company's credit
facility.

     In addition to the $150.0 million of 6.875% Senior Notes due February 15,
2008, the Company also has a $600.0 million domestic multi-currency bank
revolving credit facility ("Credit Facility"), which expires December 21, 2011.
With $207.0 million outstanding under the facility at March 31, 2007, and
outstanding letters of credit
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totaling $5.7 million, the maximum amount available under the Credit Facility
was $387.3 million. Interest is payable quarterly on the outstanding balance at
the bank agent's reference rate or, at the Company's election, at LIBOR plus an
applicable margin payable at maturity. The applicable margin is based on the
credit rating of our Senior Notes, and can range from 24 basis points to 50
basis points. Based on the Company's BBB rating at March 31, 2007, the
applicable margin was 40 basis points. We also pay an annual fee of 10 basis
points on the total Credit Facility.

     There are two financial covenants that the Company is required to maintain.
As defined in the agreement, the minimum interest coverage ratio is 3.0 to 1 and
the maximum leverage ratio is 3.25 to 1. At March 31, 2007, the Company was in
compliance with both of these financial covenants.

     We also have a one-year, renewable $30.0 million demand line of credit
("Short-Term Facility"), which expires on December 12, 2007. Borrowings under
the Short-Term Facility are at LIBOR plus the applicable margin in effect under
the Credit Facility. At March 31, 2007, there were no borrowings outstanding
under this facility.

     We believe the Company will generate sufficient cash flow from operations
for the next 12 months to meet its operating requirements, interest on all
borrowings, required debt repayments, any authorized share repurchases, planned
capital expenditures, and annual dividend payments to holders of common stock.
The Company is currently in the process of evaluating its options related to the
Senior Notes due February 15, 2008, including the potential use of its Credit
Facility. In the event that suitable businesses are available for acquisition
upon terms acceptable to the Board of Directors, we may obtain all or a portion
of the financing for the acquisitions through the incurrence of additional long-
term borrowings.

ITEM 3.  QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK.

     The Company is subject to market risk associated with changes in interest
rates and foreign currency exchange rates. The Company's interest rate exposure
is primarily related to the $376.4 million of total debt outstanding at March
31, 2007. Approximately 60% of the debt is priced at interest rates that float
with the market. A 50-basis point movement in the interest rate on the floating
rate debt would result in an approximate $1.1 million annualized increase or
decrease in interest expense and cash flows. The remaining debt is fixed rate
debt. We will, from time to time, enter into interest rate swaps on our debt
when we believe there is a financial advantage for doing so. A treasury risk
management policy, adopted by the Board of Directors, describes the procedures
and controls over derivative financial and commodity instruments, including
interest rate swaps. Under the policy, we do not use derivative financial or
commodity instruments for trading purposes, and the use of these instruments is
subject to strict approvals by senior officers. Typically, the use of derivative
instruments is limited to interest rate swaps on the Company's outstanding long-
term debt. As of March 31, 2007, the Company did not have any derivative
instruments outstanding.

     Our foreign currency exchange rate risk is limited principally to the euro
and British pound. We manage our foreign exchange risk principally through
invoicing our customers in the same currency as the source of our products. As a
result, the Company's exposure to any movement in foreign currency exchange
rates is immaterial to the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

ITEM 4.  CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES.

     The Company maintains disclosure controls and procedures that are designed
to ensure that information required to be disclosed in the Company's Exchange
Act reports is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time
periods specified in the SEC's rules and forms, and that such information is
accumulated and communicated to the Company's management, including its Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely
decisions regarding required disclosure. In designing and evaluating the
disclosure controls and procedures, management recognized that any controls and
procedures, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only
reasonable assurance of achieving the desired control objectives, and management
is required to apply its judgment in evaluating the cost-benefit relationship of
possible controls and procedures.

     As required by SEC Rule 13a-15(b), the Company carried out an evaluation,
under the supervision and with the participation of the Company's management,
including the Company's Chief Executive Officer and the Company's
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Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of the
Company's disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered
by this report. Based on the foregoing, the Company's Chief Executive Officer
and Chief Financial Officer concluded that the Company's disclosure controls and
procedures were effective.

     There has been no change in the Company's internal controls over financial
reporting during the Company's most recent fiscal quarter that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company's internal
controls over financial reporting.

                           PART II. OTHER INFORMATION

ITEM 1.  LEGAL PROCEEDINGS.

     IDEX and five of its subsidiaries have been named as defendants in a number
of lawsuits claiming various asbestos-related personal injuries, allegedly as a
result of exposure to products manufactured with components that contained
asbestos. Such components were acquired from third party suppliers, and were not
manufactured by any of the subsidiaries. To date, all of the Company's
settlements and legal costs, except for costs of coordination, administration,
insurance investigation and a portion of defense costs, have been covered in
full by insurance subject to applicable deductibles. However, the Company cannot
predict whether and to what extent insurance will be available to continue to
cover such settlements and legal costs, or how insurers may respond to claims
that are tendered to them.

     Claims have been filed in Alabama, California, Connecticut, Delaware,
Florida, Georgia, Illinois, Louisiana, Maryland, Massachusetts, Michigan,
Minnesota, Mississippi, Missouri, Nevada, New Jersey, New York, Ohio, Oklahoma,
Oregon, Pennsylvania, Rhode Island, South Carolina, Texas, Utah, Virginia,
Washington and Wyoming. Most of the claims resolved to date have been dismissed
without payment. The balance have been settled for reasonable amounts. Only one
case has been tried, resulting in a verdict for the Company's business unit.

     No provision has been made in the financial statements of the Company,
other than for insurance deductibles in the ordinary course, and IDEX does not
currently believe the asbestos-related claims will have a material adverse
effect on the Company's business, financial position, results of operations or
cash flow.

     IDEX is also party to various other legal proceedings arising in the
ordinary course of business, none of which is expected to have a material
adverse effect on its business, financial condition, results of operations or
cash flow.

ITEM 2.  UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS.

                                                                          TOTAL NUMBER OF      MAXIMUM NUMBER
                                                                        SHARES PURCHASED AS  OF SHARES THAT MAY
                                                                          PART OF PUBLICLY    YET BE PURCHASED
                                       TOTAL NUMBER OF   AVERAGE PRICE    ANNOUNCED PLANS      UNDER THE PLANS
PERIOD                                SHARES PURCHASED  PAID PER SHARE     OR PROGRAMS(1)      OR PROGRAMS(1)
------                                ----------------  --------------  -------------------  ------------------

January 1, 2007 to January 31,
  2007..............................         --               --                 --               2,240,250
February 1, 2007 to February 28,
  2007..............................         --               --                 --               2,240,250
March 1, 2007 to March 31, 2007.....         --               --                 --               2,240,250

--------

(1) On October 20, 1998, IDEX's Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of
    up to 2.25 million shares of its common stock, either at market prices or on
    a negotiated basis as market conditions warrant.

ITEM 5.  OTHER INFORMATION.

     There has been no material change to the procedures by which security
holders may recommend nominees to the Company's board.

ITEM 6.  EXHIBITS.

     The exhibits listed in the accompanying "Exhibit Index" are filed as part
of this report.
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                                   SIGNATURES

     Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

                                        IDEX CORPORATION

                                        /s/ DOMINIC A. ROMEO
                                        ----------------------------------------
                                        Dominic A. Romeo
                                        Vice President and Chief Financial
                                        Officer
                                        (duly authorized principal financial
                                        officer)

May 7, 2007
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                                  EXHIBIT INDEX

   EXHIBIT
   NUMBER                                   DESCRIPTION
   -------                                  -----------

    3.1        Restated Certificate of Incorporation of IDEX Corporation (formerly
               HI, Inc.) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit No. 3.1 to the
               Registration Statement on Form S-1 of IDEX, et al., Registration No.
               33-21205, as filed on April 21, 1988)
    3.1(a)     Amendment to Restated Certificate of Incorporation of IDEX
               Corporation (formerly HI, Inc.), (incorporated by reference to
               Exhibit No. 3.1(a) to the Quarterly Report of IDEX on Form 10-Q for
               the quarter ended March 31, 1996, Commission File No. 1-10235)
    3.1 (b)    Amendment to Restated Certificate of Incorporation of IDEX
               Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit No. 3.1(b) to the
               Current Report of IDEX on Form 8-K dated March 24, 2005, Commission
               File No. 1-10235)
    3.2        Amended and Restated By-Laws of IDEX Corporation (incorporated by
               reference to Exhibit No. 3.2 to Post-Effective Amendment No. 2 to the
               Registration Statement on Form S-1 of IDEX, et al., Registration No.
               33-21205, as filed on July 17, 1989)
    3.2(a)     Amended and Restated Article III, Section 13 of the Amended and
               Restated By-Laws of IDEX Corporation (incorporated by reference to
               Exhibit No. 3.2(a) to Post-Effective Amendment No. 3 to the
               Registration Statement on Form S-1 of IDEX, et al., Registration No.
               33-21205, as filed on February 12, 1990)
    4.1        Restated Certificate of Incorporation and By-Laws of IDEX Corporation
               (filed as Exhibits No. 3.1 through 3.2(a))
    4.2        Indenture, dated as of February 23, 1998, between IDEX Corporation,
               and Norwest Bank Minnesota, National Association, as Trustee,
               relating to the 6 7/8% Senior Notes of IDEX Corporation due February
               15, 2008 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit No. 4.1 to the Current
               Report of IDEX on Form 8-K dated February 23, 1998, Commission File
               No. 1-10235)
    4.3        Specimen Senior Note of IDEX Corporation (incorporated by reference
               to Exhibit No. 4.1 to the Current Report of IDEX on Form 8-K dated
               February 23, 1998, Commission File No. 1-10235)
    4.4        Specimen Certificate of Common Stock of IDEX Corporation
               (incorporated by reference to Exhibit No. 4.3 to the Registration
               Statement on Form S-2 of IDEX, et al., Registration No. 33-42208, as
               filed on September 16, 1991)
    4.5        Credit Agreement, dated as of December 21, 2006, among IDEX
               Corporation, Bank of America N.A. as Agent and Issuing Bank, and the
               Other Financial Institutions Party Hereto (incorporated by reference
               to Exhibit No. 10.1 to the Current Report of IDEX on Form 8-K dated
               December 22, 2006, Commission File No. 1-10235)
    4.6        Credit Lyonnais Uncommitted Line of Credit, dated as of December 3,
               2001 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.6 to the Annual Report
               of IDEX on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001, Commission
               File No. 1-10235)
    4.6 (a)    Amendment No. 7 dated as of December 12, 2006 to the Credit Lyonnais
               Uncommitted Line of Credit Agreement dated December 3, 2001
               (incorporated by reference to Exhibit No. 4.6(a) to the Annual Report
               of IDEX on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006, Commission
               File No. 1-10235)
  *10.1**      Revised IDEX Incentive Award Plan for Key Employees Effective
               February 12, 2007
  *31.1        Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)
               or Rule 15d-14(a)
  *31.2        Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)
               or Rule 15d-14(a)
  *32.1        Certification pursuant to Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18 of
               the United States Code
  *32.2        Certification pursuant to Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18 of
               the United States Code

--------

*     Filed herewith

**    Management contract or compensatory plan or agreement.
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                                                                    EXHIBIT 10.1

                                IDEX CORPORATION
                              INCENTIVE AWARD PLAN

                                    ARTICLE 1

                                     PURPOSE

         The purpose of the IDEX Corporation Incentive Award Plan (the "Plan")
is to promote the success and enhance the value of IDEX Corporation, a Delaware
corporation. (the "Company") by linking the personal interests of the members of
the Board, Employees, and Consultants to those of Company stockholders and by
providing such individuals with an incentive for outstanding performance to
generate superior returns to Company stockholders. The Plan is further intended
to provide flexibility to the Company in its ability to motivate, attract, and
retain the services of members of the Board, Employees, and Consultants upon
whose judgment, interest, and special effort the successful conduct of the
Company's operation is largely dependent.

                                    ARTICLE 2

                          DEFINITIONS AND CONSTRUCTION

         Wherever the following terms are used in the Plan they shall have the
meanings specified below, unless the context clearly indicates otherwise. The
singular pronoun shall include the plural where the context so indicates.

         2.1 "Award" means an Option, a Restricted Stock award, a Stock
Appreciation Right award, a Performance Share award, a Performance Stock Unit
award, Performance Award, a Dividend Equivalents award, a Stock Payment award, a
Deferred Stock award, a Restricted Stock Unit award, an Other Stock-Based Award,
or a Performance-Based Award granted to a Participant pursuant to the Plan.

         2.2 "Award Agreement" means any written agreement, contract, or other
instrument or document evidencing an Award, including through electronic medium.

         2.3 "Board" means the Board of Directors of the Company.

         2.4 "Change of Control" means the occurrence of (a) any transaction or
series of transactions which within a 12-month period constitute a change of
management or control where (i) at least 51 percent of the then outstanding
shares of Stock are (for cash, property (including, without limitation, stock in
any corporation), or indebtedness, or any combination thereof) redeemed by the
Company or purchased by any person(s), firm(s) or entity(ies), or exchanged for
shares in any other corporation whether or not affiliated with the Company, or
any combination of such redemption, purchase or exchange, or (ii) at least 51
percent of the Company's assets are purchased by any person(s), firm(s) or
entity(ies) whether or not affiliated with the Company for cash, property
(including, without limitation, stock in any corporation) or indebtedness or any
combination thereof, or (iii) the Company is merged or consolidated with another
corporation regardless of whether the Company is the survivor (except any such
transaction solely for the purpose of changing the Company's domicile or which
does not change 
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the ultimate beneficial ownership of the equity interests in the Company), or
(b) any substantial equivalent of any such redemption, purchase, exchange,
change, transaction or series of transactions, acquisition, merger or
consolidation constituting such a change of management or control. For purposes
hereof, the term "control" shall have the meaning ascribed thereto under the
Exchange Act and the regulations thereunder, and the term "management" shall
mean the chief executive officer of the Company. For purposes of clause (a)(ii)
above or as appropriate for purposes of clause (b) above, the Company shall be
deemed to include on a consolidated basis all subsidiaries and other affiliated
corporations or other entities with the same effect as if they were divisions.

         2.5 "Code" means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

         2.6 "Committee" means the committee of the Board described in Article
12.

         2.7 "Consultant" means any consultant or adviser if:

                  (a) The consultant or adviser renders bona fide services to
the Company;

                  (b) The services rendered by the consultant or adviser are not
in connection with the offer or sale of securities in a capital-raising
transaction and do not directly or indirectly promote or maintain a market for
the Company's securities; and

                  (c) The consultant or adviser is a natural person who has
contracted directly with the Company to render such services.

         2.8 "Covered Employee" means an Employee who is, or could be, a
"covered employee" within the meaning of Section 162(m) of the Code.

         2.9 "Deferred Stock" means a right to receive a specified number of
shares of Stock during specified time periods pursuant to Article 8.

         2.10 "Disability" means that the Participant qualifies to receive
long-term disability payments under the Company's long-term disability insurance
program, as it may be amended from time to time.

         2.11 "Dividend Equivalents" means a right granted to a Participant
pursuant to Article 8 to receive the equivalent value (in cash or Stock) of
dividends paid on Stock.

         2.12 "Effective Date" shall have the meaning set forth in Section 13.1.

         2.13 "Employee" means any officer or other employee (as defined in
accordance with Section 3401(c) of the Code) of the Company or any Subsidiary.

         2.14 "Exchange Act" means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended.

         2.15 "Fair Market Value" means, as of any given date, (i) if Stock is
traded on an exchange, the closing price of a share of Stock as reported in the
Wall Street Journal for the trading date during which a sale occurred; or (ii)
if Stock is not traded on an exchange but is 
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quoted on NASDAQ or a successor or other quotation system, (x) the last sales
price (if the Stock is then listed as a National Market Issue under the NASD
National Market System) or (y) the mean between the closing representative bid
and asked prices (in all other cases) for the Stock on the date on which sales
prices or bid and asked prices, as applicable, are reported by NASDAQ or such
successor quotation system; or (iii) if such Stock is not publicly traded on an
exchange and not quoted on NASDAQ or a successor quotation system, the mean
between the closing bid and asked prices for the Stock on such date, as
determined in good faith by the Committee; or (iv) if the Stock is not publicly
traded, the fair market value established by the Committee acting in good faith.

         2.16 "Full Value Award" means any Award other than an Option or other
Award for which the Participant pays the intrinsic value (whether directly or by
forgoing a right to receive a cash payment from the Company).

         2.17 "Incentive Stock Option" means an Option that is intended to meet
the requirements of Section 422 of the Code or any successor provision thereto.

         2.18 "Independent Director" means a member of the Board who is not an
Employee of the Company.

         2.19 "Non-Employee Director" means a member of the Board who qualifies
as a "Non-Employee Director" as defined in Rule 16b-3(b)(3) of the Exchange Act,
or any successor definition adopted by the Board.

         2.20 "Non-Qualified Stock Option" means an Option that is not intended
to be an Incentive Stock Option.

         2.21 "Option" means a right granted to a Participant pursuant to
Article 5 of the Plan to purchase a specified number of shares of Stock at a
specified price during specified time periods. An Option may be either an
Incentive Stock Option or a Non-Qualified Stock Option.

         2.22 "Other Stock-Based Award" means an Award granted or denominated in
Stock or units of Stock pursuant to Section 8.7 of the Plan.

         2.23 "Participant" means a person who, as a member of the Board,
Consultant or Employee, has been granted an Award pursuant to the Plan.

         2.24 "Performance Award" means a right granted to a Participant
pursuant to Article 8, to receive a cash payment contingent upon achieving
certain performance goals established by the Committee.

         2.25 "Performance-Based Award" means an Award granted to selected
Covered Employees pursuant to Articles 6 and 8, but which is subject to the
terms and conditions set forth in Article 9.

         2.26 "Performance Criteria" means the criteria that the Committee
selects for purposes of establishing the Performance Goal or Performance Goals
for a Participant for a Performance Period. The Performance Criteria that will
be used to establish Performance Goals are limited to 
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the following: net earnings (either before or after interest, taxes,
depreciation and amortization), economic value-added (as determined by the
Committee), sales or revenue, net income (either before or after taxes),
operating earnings, cash flow (including, but not limited to, operating cash
flow and free cash flow), cash flow return on capital, return on net assets,
return on stockholders' equity, return on assets, return on capital, stockholder
returns, return on sales, gross or net profit margin, productivity, expense,
margins, operating efficiency, customer satisfaction, working capital, earnings
per share, price per share of Stock, and market share, any of which may be
measured either in absolute terms or as compared to any incremental increase or
as compared to results of a peer group. The Committee shall, within the time
prescribed by Section 162(m) of the Code, define in an objective fashion the
manner of calculating the Performance Criteria it selects to use for such
Performance Period for such Participant.

         2.27 "Performance Goals" means, for a Performance Period, the goals
established in writing by the Committee for the Performance Period based upon
the Performance Criteria. Depending on the Performance Criteria used to
establish such Performance Goals, the Performance Goals may be expressed in
terms of overall Company performance or the performance of a division, business
unit, or an individual. The Committee, in its discretion, may, within the time
prescribed by Section 162(m) of the Code, adjust or modify the calculation of
Performance Goals for such Performance Period in order to prevent the dilution
or enlargement of the rights of Participants (i) in the event of, or in
anticipation of, any unusual or extraordinary corporate item, transaction,
event, or development, or (ii) in recognition of, or in anticipation of, any
other unusual or nonrecurring events affecting the Company, or the financial
statements of the Company, or in response to, or in anticipation of, changes in
applicable laws, regulations, accounting principles, or business conditions.

         2.28 "Performance Period" means the one or more periods of time, which
may be of varying and overlapping durations, as the Committee may select, over
which the attainment of one or more Performance Goals will be measured for the
purpose of determining a Participant's right to, and the payment of, a
Performance-Based Award.

         2.29 "Performance Share" means a right granted to a Participant
pursuant to Article 8, to receive Stock, the payment of which is contingent upon
achieving certain performance goals established by the Committee.

         2.30 "Performance Stock Unit" means a right granted to a Participant
pursuant to Article 8, to receive Stock, the payment of which is contingent upon
achieving certain performance goals established by the Committee.

         2.31 "Plan" means this IDEX Corporation Incentive Award Plan, as it may
be amended from time to time.

         2.32 "Qualified Performance-Based Compensation" means any compensation
that is intended to qualify as "qualified performance-based compensation" as
described in Section 162(m)(4)(C) of the Code.

         2.33 "Restricted Stock" means Stock awarded to a Participant pursuant
to Article 6 that is subject to certain restrictions and may be subject to risk
of forfeiture.
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         2.34 "Restricted Stock Unit" means an Award granted pursuant to Section
8.6.

         2.35 "Stock" means the common stock of the Company, par value $0.01 per
share, and such other securities of the Company that may be substituted for
Stock pursuant to Article 11.

         2.36 "Stock Appreciation Right" or "SAR" means a right granted pursuant
to Article 7 to receive a payment equal to the excess of the Fair Market Value
of a specified number of shares of Stock on the date the SAR is exercised over
the Fair Market Value on the date the SAR was granted as set forth in the
applicable Award Agreement.

         2.37 "Stock Payment" means (a) a payment in the form of shares of
Stock, or (b) an option or other right to purchase shares of Stock, as part of
any bonus, deferred compensation or other arrangement, made in lieu of all or
any portion of the compensation, granted pursuant to Article 8.

         2.38 "Subsidiary" means any corporation or other entity of which a
majority of the outstanding voting stock or voting power is beneficially owned
directly or indirectly by the Company.

                                    ARTICLE 3

                           SHARES SUBJECT TO THE PLAN

         3.1 Number of Shares.

                  (a) Subject to Article 11 and Section 3.1(b), the aggregate
number of shares of Stock which may be issued or transferred pursuant to Awards
under the Plan shall be 2,300,000 shares; provided however, no more than 650,000
shares of Stock may be issued in the form of Full Value Awards. The maximum
number of shares of Stock that may be delivered upon exercise of Incentive Stock
Options shall be 2,300,000.

                  (b) Notwithstanding Section 3.1(a): (i) the Committee may
adopt reasonable counting procedures to ensure appropriate counting, avoid
double counting (as, for example, in the case of tandem or substitute awards),
and make adjustments if the number of shares of Stock actually delivered differs
from the number of shares previously counted in connection with an Award; (ii)
shares of Stock that are potentially deliverable under any Award that expires or
is canceled, forfeited or otherwise terminated without a delivery of such shares
to the Participant will not be counted as delivered under the Plan; (iii) shares
of Stock that have been issued in connection with any Award (e.g., Restricted
Stock) that is canceled, forfeited, or repurchased for the same price paid by
the Participant so that such shares of Stock are returned to the Company will
again be available for Awards; provided, however, that, no shares shall become
available pursuant to this Section 3.1(b) to the extent that (x) the transaction
resulting in the return of shares occurs more than ten years after the date of
the most recent shareholder approval of the Plan, or (y) such return of shares
would constitute a "material revision" of the Plan subject to stockholder
approval under then applicable rules of the New York Stock Exchange (or any
other applicable exchange or quotation system). In addition, in the case of any
Award granted in substitution for an award of a company or business acquired by
the Company or a subsidiary or affiliate, shares of Stock issued or issuable in
connection with such substitute Award shall not be 
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counted against the number of shares reserved under the Plan, but shall be
available under the Plan by virtue of the Company's assumption of the plan or
arrangement of the acquired company or business. This Section 3.1 shall apply to
the share limit imposed with respect to Incentive Stock Options only to the
extent consistent with applicable regulations relating to Incentive Stock
Options under the Code. Because shares will count against the number reserved in
Section 3.1 upon delivery, the Committee may, subject to the share counting
rules under this Section 3.1, determine that Awards may be outstanding that
relate to a greater number of shares than the aggregate remaining available
under the Plan, so long as Awards will not result in delivery and vesting of
shares in excess of the number then available under the Plan. The payment of
Dividend Equivalents in conjunction with any outstanding Awards shall not be
counted against the shares available for issuance under the Plan. Shares which
are used to pay the exercise price for an Option or SAR, shares withheld to pay
taxes and shares repurchased by the Company other than by reason of a forfeiture
provision will be cancelled and will not again be available for issuance under
the Plan.

         3.2 Stock Distributed. Any Stock distributed pursuant to an Award may
consist, in whole or in part, of authorized and unissued Stock, treasury Stock
or Stock purchased on the open market.

         3.3 Limitation on Number of Shares Subject to Awards and Limit on
Performance Awards. Notwithstanding any provision in the Plan to the contrary,
and subject to Article 11, the maximum number of shares of Stock with respect to
one or more Awards that may be granted to any one Participant during any
calendar year shall be 500,000. The maximum amount that may be paid in cash as a
Performance Award that is intended to be a Performance Based Award shall not
exceed 2% of the Company's operating income (income from operations before
extraordinary items, interest and taxes).

                                    ARTICLE 4

                          ELIGIBILITY AND PARTICIPATION

         4.1 Eligibility.

                  (a) General. Persons eligible to participate in this Plan
include Employees, Consultants, and all members of the Board, as determined by
the Committee.

                  (b) Foreign Participants. Notwithstanding any provision of the
Plan to the contrary, in order to comply with the laws in other countries in
which the Company and its Subsidiaries operate or have Employees, Consultants or
members of the Board, the Committee, in its sole discretion, shall have the
power and authority to:

                           (i) Determine which Subsidiaries shall be covered by
the Plan;

                           (ii) Determine which Employees, Consultants or
members of the Board outside the Unites States are eligible to participate in
the Plan;
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                           (iii) Modify the terms and conditions of any Award
granted to Employees, Consultants or members of the Board outside the United
States to comply with applicable foreign laws;

                           (iv) Establish subplans and modify exercise
procedures and other terms and procedures, to the extent such actions may be
necessary or advisable (any such subplans and/or modifications shall be attached
to this Plan as appendices); provided, however, that no such subplans and/or
modifications shall increase the share limitations contained in Sections 3.1 and
3.3 of the Plan; and

                           (v) Take any action, before or after an Award is
made, that it deems advisable to obtain approval or comply with any necessary
local governmental regulatory exemptions or approvals.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Committee may not take any actions hereunder,
and no Awards shall be granted, that would violate the Exchange Act, the Code,
any securities law or governing statute or any other applicable law.

         4.2 Participation. Subject to the provisions of the Plan, the Committee
may, from time to time, select from among all eligible individuals, those to
whom Awards shall be granted and shall determine the nature and amount of each
Award. No individual shall have any right to be granted an Award pursuant to
this Plan.

                                    ARTICLE 5

                                  STOCK OPTIONS

         5.1 General. The Committee is authorized to grant Options to
Participants on the following terms and conditions:

                  (a) Exercise Price. The exercise price per share of Stock
subject to an Option shall be determined by the Committee and set forth in the
Award Agreement; provided that the exercise price for any Option shall not be
less than 100% of the Fair Market Value on the date of grant.

                  (b) Time and Conditions of Exercise. The Committee shall
determine the time or times at which an Option may be exercised in whole or in
part; provided that the term of any Option granted under the Plan shall not
exceed ten years and that no Option may be exercisable earlier than one year
after its date of grant, except as provided in Section 11.2. The Committee shall
also determine the performance or other conditions, if any, that must be
satisfied before all or part of an Option may be exercised.

                  (c) Payment. The Committee shall determine the methods by
which the exercise price of an Option may be paid, the form of payment,
including, without limitation, cash, promissory note bearing interest at no less
than such rate as shall then preclude the imputation of interest under the Code,
shares of Stock held for longer than 6 months having a Fair Market Value on the
date of delivery equal to the aggregate exercise price of the Option or
exercised portion thereof, or other property acceptable to the Committee
(including through the 
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delivery of a notice that the Participant has placed a market sell order with a
broker with respect to shares of Stock then issuable upon exercise of the
Option, and that the broker has been directed to pay a sufficient portion of the
net proceeds of the sale to the Company in satisfaction of the Option exercise
price; provided that payment of such proceeds is then made to the Company upon
settlement of such sale), and the methods by which shares of Stock shall be
delivered or deemed to be delivered to Participants. Notwithstanding any other
provision of the Plan to the contrary, no Participant who is a member of the
Board or an "executive officer" of the Company within the meaning of Section
13(k) of the Exchange Act shall be permitted to pay the exercise price of an
Option in any method which would violate Section 13(k) of the Exchange Act.

                  (d) Evidence of Grant. All Options shall be evidenced by an
Award Agreement between the Company and the Participant. The Award Agreement
shall include such additional provisions as may be specified by the Committee.

         5.2 Incentive Stock Options. Incentive Stock Options shall be granted
only to Employees and the terms of any Incentive Stock Options granted pursuant
to the Plan, in addition to the requirements of Section 5.1, must comply with
the following additional provisions of this Section 5.2:

                  (a) Expiration of Option. An Incentive Stock Option may not be
exercised to any extent by anyone after the first to occur of the following
events:

                           (i) Ten years from the date it is granted, unless an
earlier time is set in the Award Agreement;

                           (ii) Three months after the Participant's termination
of employment as an Employee; and

                           (iii) One year after the date of the Participant's
termination of employment or service on account of Disability or death. Upon the
Participant's Disability or death, any Incentive Stock Options exercisable at
the Participant's Disability or death may be exercised by the Participant's
legal representative or representatives, by the person or persons entitled to do
so pursuant to the Participant's last will and testament, or, if the Participant
fails to make testamentary disposition of such Incentive Stock Option or dies
intestate, by the person or persons entitled to receive the Incentive Stock
Option pursuant to the applicable laws of descent and distribution.

                  (b) Individual Dollar Limitation. The aggregate Fair Market
Value (determined as of the time the Option is granted) of all shares of Stock
with respect to which Incentive Stock Options are first exercisable by a
Participant in any calendar year may not exceed $100,000 or such other
limitation as imposed by Section 422(d) of the Code, or any successor provision.
To the extent that Incentive Stock Options are first exercisable by a
Participant in excess of such limitation, the excess shall be considered
Non-Qualified Stock Options.

                  (c) Ten Percent Owners. An Incentive Stock Option shall be
granted to any individual who, at the date of grant, owns stock possessing more
than ten percent of the total 
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combined voting power of all classes of Stock of the Company only if such Option
is granted at a price that is not less than 110% of Fair Market Value on the
date of grant and the Option is exercisable for no more than five years from the
date of grant.

                  (d) Transfer Restriction. The Participant shall give the
Company prompt notice of any disposition of shares of Stock acquired by exercise
of an Incentive Stock Option within (i) two years from the date of grant of such
Incentive Stock Option or (ii) one year after the transfer of such shares of
Stock to the Participant.

                  (e) Expiration of Incentive Stock Options. No Award of an
Incentive Stock Option may be made pursuant to this Plan after the tenth
anniversary of the Effective Date.

                  (f) Right to Exercise. During a Participant's lifetime, an
Incentive Stock Option may be exercised only by the Participant.

         5.3 Substitution of Stock Appreciation Rights. The Committee may
provide in the Award Agreement evidencing the grant of an Option that the
Committee, in its sole discretion, shall have to right to substitute a Stock
Appreciation Right for such Option at any time prior to or upon exercise of such
Option, provided that such Stock Appreciation Right shall be exercisable for the
same number of shares of Stock as such substituted Option would have been
exercisable for.

                                    ARTICLE 6

                             RESTRICTED STOCK AWARDS

         6.1 Grant of Restricted Stock. The Committee is authorized to make
Awards of Restricted Stock to any Participant selected by the Committee in such
amounts and subject to such terms and conditions as determined by the Committee.
All Awards of Restricted Stock shall be evidenced by an Award Agreement.

         6.2 Issuance and Restrictions. Subject to Section 10.6, Restricted
Stock shall be subject to such restrictions on transferability and other
restrictions as the Committee may impose (including, without limitation,
limitations on the right to vote Restricted Stock or the right to receive
dividends on the Restricted Stock). These restrictions may lapse separately or
in combination at such times, pursuant to such circumstances, in such
installments, or otherwise, as the Committee determines at the time of the grant
of the Award or thereafter.

         6.3 Forfeiture. Except as otherwise determined by the Committee at the
time of the grant of the Award or thereafter, upon termination of employment or
service during the applicable restriction period, Restricted Stock that is at
that time subject to restrictions shall be forfeited; provided, however, that,
except as otherwise provided by Section 10.6, the Committee may (a) provide in
any Restricted Stock Award Agreement that restrictions or forfeiture conditions
relating to Restricted Stock will be waived in whole or in part in the event of
terminations resulting from specified causes, and (b) in other cases waive in
whole or in part restrictions or forfeiture conditions relating to Restricted
Stock.
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         6.4 Certificates for Restricted Stock. Restricted Stock granted
pursuant to the Plan may be evidenced in such manner as the Committee shall
determine. If certificates representing shares of Restricted Stock are
registered in the name of the Participant, certificates must bear an appropriate
legend referring to the terms, conditions, and restrictions applicable to such
Restricted Stock, and the Company may, at its discretion, retain physical
possession of the certificate until such time as all applicable restrictions
lapse.

                                    ARTICLE 7

                            STOCK APPRECIATION RIGHTS

         7.1 Grant of Stock Appreciation Rights.

                  (a) A Stock Appreciation Right may be granted to any
Participant selected by the Committee. A Stock Appreciation Right shall be
subject to such terms and conditions not inconsistent with the Plan as the
Committee shall impose and shall be evidenced by an Award Agreement.

                  (b) A Stock Appreciation Right shall entitle the Participant
(or other person entitled to exercise the Stock Appreciation Right pursuant to
the Plan) to exercise all or a specified portion of the Stock Appreciation Right
(to the extent then exercisable pursuant to its terms) and to receive from the
Company an amount determined by multiplying the difference obtained by
subtracting the exercise price per share of the Stock Appreciation Right from
the Fair Market Value of a share of Stock on the date of exercise of the Stock
Appreciation Right by the number of shares of Stock with respect to which the
Stock Appreciation Right shall have been exercised, subject to any limitations
the Committee may impose.

         7.2 Payment and Limitations on Exercise.

                  (a) Payment of the amounts determined under Section 7.1(b)
above shall be in cash, in Stock (based on its Fair Market Value as of the date
the Stock Appreciation Right is exercised) or a combination of both, as
determined by the Committee in the Award Agreement. To the extent payment for a
Stock Appreciation Right is to be made in cash. The Award Agreements shall
specify the date of payment which may be different than the date of exercise of
the Stock Appreciation Right, to the extent necessary to comply with the
requirements to Section 409A of the Code, as applicable. If the date of payment
for a Stock Appreciation Right is later than the date of exercise, the Award
Agreement may specify that the Participant be entitled to earnings on such
amount until paid.

                  (b) To the extent any payment under Section 7.1(b) is effected
in Stock it shall be made subject to satisfaction of all provisions of Article 5
above pertaining to Options.

                                    ARTICLE 8

                              OTHER TYPES OF AWARDS

         8.1 Performance Share Awards. Any Participant selected by the Committee
may be granted one or more Performance Share awards which shall be denominated
in a number of 
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shares of Stock and which may be linked to any one or more of the
Performance Criteria or other specific performance criteria determined
appropriate by the Committee, in each case on a specified date or dates or over
any period or periods determined by the Committee (subject to Section 10.6). In
making such determinations, the Committee shall consider (among such other
factors as it deems relevant in light of the specific type of award) the
contributions, responsibilities and other compensation of the particular
Participant.

         8.2 Performance Stock Units. Any Participant selected by the Committee
may be granted one or more Performance Stock Unit awards which shall be
denominated in unit equivalent of shares of Stock and/or units of value
including dollar value of shares of Stock and which may be linked to any one or
more of the Performance Criteria or other specific performance criteria
determined appropriate by the Committee, in each case on a specified date or
dates or over any period or periods determined by the Committee (subject to
Section 10.6). In making such determinations, the Committee shall consider
(among such other factors as it deems relevant in light of the specific type of
award) the contributions, responsibilities and other compensation of the
particular Participant.

         8.3 Performance Award. Any Participant selected by the Committee may be
granted a Performance Award. The value of such Performance Awards may be linked
to any one or more of the Performance Criteria or other specific performance
criteria determined appropriate by the Committee, in each case on a specified
date or dates or over any Performance Period determined by the Committee. In
making such determinations, the Committee shall consider (among such other
factors as it deems relevant in light of the specific type of award) the
contributions, responsibilities and other compensation of the Participant.

         8.4 Dividend Equivalents.

                  (a) Any Participant selected by the Committee may be granted
Dividend Equivalents based on the dividends declared on the shares of Stock that
are subject to any Award, to be credited as of dividend payment dates, during
the period between the date the Award is granted and the date the Award is
exercised, vests or expires, as determined by the Committee. Such Dividend
Equivalents shall be converted to cash or additional shares of Stock by such
formula and at such time and subject to such limitations as may be determined by
the Committee.

                  (b) Dividend Equivalents granted with respect to Options or
SARs that are intended to be Qualified Performance-Based Compensation shall be
payable, with respect to pre-exercise periods, regardless of whether such Option
or SAR is subsequently exercised.

         8.5 Stock Payments. Any Participant selected by the Committee may
receive Stock Payments in the manner determined from time to time by the
Committee; provided, that unless otherwise determined by the Committee such
Stock Payments shall be made in lieu of base salary, bonus, or other cash
compensation otherwise payable to such Participant. The number of shares shall
be determined by the Committee and may be based upon the Performance Criteria or
other specific criteria determined appropriate by the Committee, determined on
the date such Stock Payment is made or on any date thereafter.
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         8.6 Deferred Stock. Any Participant selected by the Committee may be
granted an award of Deferred Stock in the manner determined from time to time by
the Committee. The number of shares of Deferred Stock shall be determined by the
Committee and may be linked to the Performance Criteria or other specific
criteria determined to be appropriate by the Committee, in each case on a
specified date or dates or over any period or periods determined by the
Committee (subject to Section 10.6). Stock underlying a Deferred Stock award
will not be issued until the Deferred Stock award has vested, pursuant to a
vesting schedule or criteria set by the Committee. Unless otherwise provided by
the Committee, a Participant awarded Deferred Stock shall have no rights as a
Company stockholder with respect to such Deferred Stock until such time as the
Deferred Stock Award has vested and the Stock underlying the Deferred Stock
Award has been issued.

         8.7 Restricted Stock Units. The Committee is authorized to make Awards
of Restricted Stock Units to any Participant selected by the Committee in such
amounts and subject to such terms and conditions as determined by the Committee.
At the time of grant, the Committee shall specify the date or dates on which the
Restricted Stock Units shall become fully vested and nonforfeitable, and may
specify such conditions to vesting as it deems appropriate (subject to Section
10.6). At the time of grant, the Committee shall specify the maturity date
applicable to each grant of Restricted Stock Units which shall be no earlier
than the vesting date or dates of the Award and may be determined at the
election of the grantee. On the maturity date, the Company shall transfer to the
Participant one unrestricted, fully transferable share of Stock for each
Restricted Stock Unit scheduled to be paid out on such date and not previously
forfeited. The Committee shall specify the purchase price, if any, to be paid by
the grantee to the Company for such shares of Stock.

         8.8 Term. Except as otherwise provided herein, the term of any Award of
Performance Shares, Performance Stock Units, Dividend Equivalents, Stock
Payments, Deferred Stock, Restricted Stock Units or Other Stock-Based Award
shall be set by the Committee in its discretion.

         8.9 Exercise or Purchase Price. The Committee may establish the
exercise or purchase price, if any, of any Award of Performance Shares,
Performance Stock Units, Deferred Stock, Stock Payments, Restricted Stock Units
or Other Stock-Based Award; provided, however, that such price shall not be less
than the par value of a share of Stock, unless otherwise permitted by applicable
state law.

         8.10 Exercise Upon Termination of Employment or Service. An Award of
Performance Shares, Performance Stock Units, Dividend Equivalents, Deferred
Stock, Stock Payments, Restricted Stock Units and Other Stock-Based Award shall
only be exercisable or payable while the Participant is an Employee, Consultant
or a member of the Board, as applicable; provided, however, that the Committee
in its sole and absolute discretion may provide that an Award of Performance
Shares, Performance Stock Units, Dividend Equivalents, Stock Payments, Deferred
Stock, Restricted Stock Units or Other Stock-Based Award may be exercised or
paid subsequent to a termination of employment or service, as applicable, or
following a Change of Control of the Company, or because of the Participant's
retirement, death or disability, or otherwise.
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         8.11 Form of Payment. Payments with respect to any Awards granted under
this Article 8 shall be made in cash, in Stock or a combination of both, as
determined by the Committee.

         8.12 Award Agreement. All Awards under this Article 8 shall be subject
to such additional terms and conditions as determined by the Committee and shall
be evidenced by an Award Agreement.

                                    ARTICLE 9

                            PERFORMANCE-BASED AWARDS

         9.1 Purpose. The purpose of this Article 9 is to provide the Committee
the ability to qualify Awards other than Options and SARs and that are granted
pursuant to Articles 6 and 8 as Qualified Performance-Based Compensation. If the
Committee, in its discretion, decides to grant a Performance-Based Award to a
Covered Employee, the provisions of this Article 9 shall control over any
contrary provision contained in Articles 6 or 8; provided, however, that the
Committee may in its discretion grant Awards to Covered Employees or other
Participants that are based on Performance Criteria or Performance Goals but
that do not satisfy the requirements of this Article 9.

         9.2 Applicability. This Article 9 shall apply only to those Covered
Employees selected by the Committee to receive Performance-Based Awards. The
designation of a Covered Employee as a Participant for a Performance Period
shall not in any manner entitle the Participant to receive an Award for the
period. Moreover, designation of a Covered Employee as a Participant for a
particular Performance Period shall not require designation of such Covered
Employee as a Participant in any subsequent Performance Period and designation
of one Covered Employee as a Participant shall not require designation of any
other Covered Employees as a Participant in such period or in any other period.

         9.3 Procedures with Respect to Performance-Based Awards. To the extent
necessary to comply with the Qualified Performance-Based Compensation
requirements of Section 162(m)(4)(C) of the Code, with respect to any Award
granted under Articles 6 and 8 which may be granted to one or more Covered
Employees, no later than ninety (90) days following the commencement of any
fiscal year in question or any other designated fiscal period or period of
service (or such other time as may be required or permitted by Section 162(m) of
the Code), the Committee shall, in writing, (a) designate one or more Covered
Employees, (b) select the Performance Criteria applicable to the Performance
Period, (c) establish the Performance Goals, and amounts of such Awards, as
applicable, which may be earned for such Performance Period, and (d) specify the
relationship between Performance Criteria and the Performance Goals and the
amounts of such Awards, as applicable, to be earned by each Covered Employee for
such Performance Period. Following the completion of each Performance Period,
the Committee shall certify in writing whether the applicable Performance Goals
have been achieved for such Performance Period. In determining the amount earned
by a Covered Employee, the Committee shall have the right to reduce or eliminate
(but not to increase) the amount payable at a given level of performance to take
into account additional factors that the Committee may deem relevant to the
assessment of individual or corporate performance for the Performance Period.
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         9.4 Payment of Performance-Based Awards. Unless otherwise provided in
the applicable Award Agreement, a Participant must be employed by the Company or
a Subsidiary on the day a Performance-Based Award for such Performance Period is
paid to the Participant. Furthermore, a Participant shall be eligible to receive
payment pursuant to a Performance-Based Award for a Performance Period only if
the Performance Goals for such period are achieved. In determining the amount
earned under a Performance-Based Award, the Committee may reduce or eliminate
the amount of the Performance-Based Award earned for the Performance Period, if
in its sole and absolute discretion, such reduction or elimination is
appropriate.

         9.5 Additional Limitations. Notwithstanding any other provision of the
Plan, any Award which is granted to a Covered Employee and is intended to
constitute Qualified Performance-Based Compensation shall be subject to any
additional limitations set forth in Section 162(m) of the Code (including any
amendment to Section 162(m) of the Code) or any regulations or rulings issued
thereunder that are requirements for qualification as qualified
performance-based compensation as described in Section 162(m)(4)(C) of the Code,
and the Plan shall be deemed amended to the extent necessary to conform to such
requirements.

                                   ARTICLE 10

                         PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO AWARDS

         10.1 Stand-Alone and Tandem Awards. Awards granted pursuant to the Plan
may, in the discretion of the Committee, be granted either alone, in addition
to, or in tandem with, any other Award granted pursuant to the Plan. Awards
granted in addition to or in tandem with other Awards may be granted either at
the same time as or at a different time from the grant of such other Awards.

         10.2 Award Agreement. Awards under the Plan shall be evidenced by Award
Agreements that set forth the terms, conditions and limitations for each Award
which may include the term of an Award, the provisions applicable in the event
the Participant's employment or service terminates, and the Company's authority
to unilaterally or bilaterally amend, modify, suspend, cancel or rescind an
Award.

         10.3 Limits on Transfer. No right or interest of a Participant in any
Award may be pledged, encumbered, or hypothecated to or in favor of any party
other than the Company or a Subsidiary, or shall be subject to any lien,
obligation, or liability of such Participant to any other party other than the
Company or a Subsidiary. Except as otherwise provided by the Committee, no Award
shall be assigned, transferred, or otherwise disposed of by a Participant other
than by will or the laws of descent and distribution. The Committee by express
provision in the Award or an amendment thereto may permit an Award (other than
an Incentive Stock Option) to be transferred to, exercised by and paid to
certain persons or entities related to the Participant, including but not
limited to members of the Participant's family, charitable institutions, or
trusts or other entities whose beneficiaries or beneficial owners are members of
the Participant's family and/or charitable institutions, or to such other
persons or entities as may be expressly approved by the Committee, pursuant to
such conditions and procedures as the Committee may establish. Any permitted
transfer shall be subject to the condition that the Committee receive evidence
satisfactory to it that the transfer is being made for estate and/or tax
planning purposes (or to a 
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"blind trust" in connection with the Participant's termination of employment or
service with the Company or a Subsidiary to assume a position with a
governmental, charitable, educational or similar non-profit institution) and on
a basis consistent with the Company's lawful issue of securities.

         10.4 Beneficiaries. Notwithstanding Section 10.3, a Participant may, in
the manner determined by the Committee, designate a beneficiary to exercise the
rights of the Participant and to receive any distribution with respect to any
Award upon the Participant's death. A beneficiary, legal guardian, legal
representative, or other person claiming any rights pursuant to the Plan is
subject to all terms and conditions of the Plan and any Award Agreement
applicable to the Participant, except to the extent the Plan and Award Agreement
otherwise provide, and to any additional restrictions deemed necessary or
appropriate by the Committee. If the Participant is married and resides in a
community property state, a designation of a person other than the Participant's
spouse as his or her beneficiary with respect to more than 50% of the
Participant's interest in the Award shall not be effective without the prior
written consent of the Participant's spouse. If no beneficiary has been
designated or survives the Participant, payment shall be made to the person
entitled thereto pursuant to the Participant's will or the laws of descent and
distribution. Subject to the foregoing, a beneficiary designation may be changed
or revoked by a Participant at any time provided the change or revocation is
filed with the Committee.

         10.5 Stock Certificates. Notwithstanding anything herein to the
contrary, the Company shall not be required to issue or deliver any certificates
evidencing shares of Stock pursuant to the exercise of any Award, unless and
until the Board has determined, with advice of counsel, that the issuance and
delivery of such certificates is in compliance with all applicable laws,
regulations of governmental authorities and, if applicable, the requirements of
any exchange on which the shares of Stock are listed or traded. All Stock
certificates delivered pursuant to the Plan are subject to any stop-transfer
orders and other restrictions as the Committee deems necessary or advisable to
comply with federal, state, or foreign jurisdiction, securities or other laws,
rules and regulations and the rules of any national securities exchange or
automated quotation system on which the Stock is listed, quoted, or traded. The
Committee may place legends on any Stock certificate to reference restrictions
applicable to the Stock. In addition to the terms and conditions provided
herein, the Board may require that a Participant make such reasonable covenants,
agreements, and representations as the Board, in its discretion, deems advisable
in order to comply with any such laws, regulations, or requirements. The
Committee shall have the right to require any Participant to comply with any
timing or other restrictions with respect to the settlement or exercise of any
Award, including a window-period limitation, as may be imposed in the discretion
of the Committee.

         10.6 Full Value Award Vesting Limitations. Notwithstanding any other
provision of this Plan to the contrary, Full Value Awards made to Employees or
Consultants shall become vested over a period of not less than three years (or,
in the case of vesting based upon the attainment of Performance Goals or other
performance-based objectives, over a period of not less than one year) following
the date the Award is made; provided, however, that, notwithstanding the
foregoing, Full Value Awards that result in the issuance of an aggregate of up
to 5% of the shares of Stock available pursuant to Section 3.1(a) may be granted
to any one or more Participants without respect to such minimum vesting
provisions.
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         10.7 Paperless Exercise. In the event that the Company establishes, for
itself or using the services of a third party, an automated system for the
exercise of Awards, such as a system using an internet website or interactive
voice response, then the paperless exercise of Awards by a Participant may be
permitted through the use of such an automated system.

                                   ARTICLE 11

                          CHANGES IN CAPITAL STRUCTURE

         11.1 Adjustments. In the event of any stock dividend, stock split,
combination or exchange of shares, merger, consolidation, spin-off,
recapitalization or other distribution (other than normal cash dividends) of
Company assets to stockholders, or any other change affecting the shares of
Stock or the share price of the Stock, the Committee shall make such
proportionate adjustments, if any, as the Committee in its discretion may deem
appropriate to reflect such change with respect to (a) the aggregate number and
type of shares that may be issued under the Plan (including, but not limited to,
adjustments of the limitations in Sections 3.1 and 3.3); (b) the terms and
conditions of any outstanding Awards (including, without limitation, any
applicable performance targets or criteria with respect thereto); and (c) the
grant or exercise price per share for any outstanding Awards under the Plan. Any
adjustment affecting an Award intended as Qualified Performance-Based
Compensation shall be made consistent with the requirements of Section 162(m) of
the Code.

         11.2 Acceleration upon a Change of Control. Except as may otherwise be
provided in any Award Agreement or any other written agreement entered into by
and between the Company and a Participant, if a Change of Control occurs and a
Participant's Options, Restricted Stock or Stock Appreciation Rights settled in
stock are not converted, assumed, or replaced by a successor, such Awards shall
become fully exercisable and all forfeiture restrictions on such Awards shall
lapse; and provided such Change of Control is a change in the ownership or
effective control of the Company or in the ownership of or a substantial portion
of the assets of the Company within the meaning of Section 409A of the Code,
then all Restricted Stock Units, Deferred Stock and Performance Stock shall
become deliverable upon the Change of Control. Upon, or in anticipation of, a
Change of Control, the Committee may in its sole discretion provide for (i) any
and all Awards outstanding hereunder to terminate at a specific time in the
future and shall give each Participant the right to exercise such Awards during
a period of time as the Committee shall determine, (ii) either the purchase of
any Award for an amount of cash equal to the amount that could have been
attained upon the exercise of such Award or realization of the Participant's
rights had such Award been currently exercisable or payable or fully vested
(and, for the avoidance of doubt, if as of such date the Committee determines in
good faith that no amount would have been attained upon the exercise of such
Award or realization of the Participant's rights, then such Award may be
terminated by the Company without payment), (iii) the replacement of such Award
with other rights or property selected by the Committee in its sole discretion
the assumption of or substitution of such Award by the successor or surviving
corporation, or a parent or subsidiary thereof, with appropriate adjustments as
to the number and kind of Shares and prices, or (iv) provide for payment of
Awards in cash based on the value of Stock on the date of the Change of Control
plus reasonable interest on the Award through the date such Award would
otherwise be vested or have been paid in accordance with its original terms, if
necessary to comply with Section 409A of the Code.
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         11.3 Outstanding Awards -- Certain Mergers. Subject to any required
action by the stockholders of the Company, in the event that the Company shall
be the surviving corporation in any merger or consolidation (except a merger or
consolidation as a result of which the holders of shares of Stock receive
securities of another corporation), each Award outstanding on the date of such
merger or consolidation shall pertain to and apply to the securities that a
holder of the number of shares of Stock subject to such Award would have
received in such merger or consolidation.

         11.4 Outstanding Awards -- Other Changes. In the event of any other
change in the capitalization of the Company or corporate change other than those
specifically referred to in this Article 11, the Committee may, in its absolute
discretion, make such adjustments in the number and class of shares subject to
Awards outstanding on the date on which such change occurs and in the per share
grant or exercise price of each Award as the Committee may consider appropriate
to prevent dilution or enlargement of rights.

         11.5 No Other Rights. Except as expressly provided in the Plan, no
Participant shall have any rights by reason of any subdivision or consolidation
of shares of stock of any class, the payment of any dividend, any increase or
decrease in the number of shares of stock of any class or any dissolution,
liquidation, merger, or consolidation of the Company or any other corporation.
Except as expressly provided in the Plan or pursuant to action of the Committee
under the Plan, no issuance by the Company of shares of stock of any class, or
securities convertible into shares of stock of any class, shall affect, and no
adjustment by reason thereof shall be made with respect to, the number of shares
of Stock subject to an Award or the grant or exercise price of any Award.

                                   ARTICLE 12

                                 ADMINISTRATION

         12.1 Committee. The Plan shall be administered by the Compensation
Committee of the Board; provided, however that the Compensation Committee may
delegate to a committee of one or more members of the Board the authority to
grant or amend Awards to Participants other than (a) senior executives of the
Company who are subject to Section 16 of the Exchange Act or (b) Covered
Employees. The Committee shall consist of at least two individuals, each of whom
qualifies as (x) a Non-Employee Director, and (y) an "outside director" pursuant
to Code Section 162(m) and the regulations issued thereunder. Reference to the
Committee shall refer to the Board if the Compensation Committee ceases to exist
and the Board does not appoint a successor Committee.

         12.2 Action by the Committee. A majority of the Committee shall
constitute a quorum. The acts of a majority of the members present at any
meeting at which a quorum is present, and acts approved in writing by a majority
of the Committee in lieu of a meeting, shall be deemed the acts of the
Committee. Each member of the Committee is entitled to, in good faith, rely or
act upon any report or other information furnished to that member by any officer
or other employee of the Company or any Subsidiary, the Company's independent
certified public accountants, or any executive compensation consultant or other
professional retained by the Company to assist in the administration of the
Plan.
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         12.3 Authority of Committee. Subject to any specific designation in the
Plan, the Committee has the exclusive power, authority and discretion to:

                  (a) Designate Participants to receive Awards;

                  (b) Determine the type or types of Awards to be granted to
each Participant;

                  (c) Determine the number of Awards to be granted and the
number of shares of Stock to which an Award will relate;

                  (d) Determine the terms and conditions of any Award granted
pursuant to the Plan, including, but not limited to, the exercise price, grant
price, or purchase price, any restrictions or limitations on the Award, any
schedule for lapse of forfeiture restrictions or restrictions on the
exercisability of an Award, and accelerations or waivers thereof, any provisions
related to non-competition and recapture of gain on an Award, based in each case
on such considerations as the Committee in its sole discretion determines;
provided, however, that the Committee shall not have the authority to accelerate
the vesting or waive the forfeiture of any Performance-Based Awards;

                  (e) Determine whether, to what extent, and pursuant to what
circumstances an Award may be settled in, or the exercise price of an Award may
be paid in, cash, Stock, other Awards, or other property, or an Award may be
canceled, forfeited, or surrendered;

                  (f) Prescribe the form of each Award Agreement, which need not
be identical for each Participant;

                  (g) Decide all other matters that must be determined in
connection with an Award;

                  (h) Establish, adopt, or revise any rules and regulations as
it may deem necessary or advisable to administer the Plan;

                  (i) Interpret the terms of, and any matter arising pursuant
to, the Plan or any Award Agreement; and

                  (j) Make all other decisions and determinations that may be
required pursuant to the Plan or as the Committee deems necessary or advisable
to administer the Plan.

         12.4 Decisions Binding. The Committee's interpretation of the Plan, any
Awards granted pursuant to the Plan, any Award Agreement and all decisions and
determinations by the Committee with respect to the Plan are final, binding, and
conclusive on all parties.

                                   ARTICLE 13

                          EFFECTIVE AND EXPIRATION DATE

         13.1 Effective Date. The Plan is effective as of the date the Plan is
approved by the Company's stockholders (the "Effective Date"). The Plan will be
deemed to be approved by the 
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stockholders if it receives the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of
the shares of stock of the Company present or represented and entitled to vote
at a meeting duly held in accordance with the applicable provisions of the
Company's Bylaws.

         13.2 Expiration Date. The Plan will expire on, and no Award may be
granted pursuant to the Plan after, the tenth anniversary of the Effective Date.
Any Awards that are outstanding on the tenth anniversary of the Effective Date
shall remain in force according to the terms of the Plan and the applicable
Award Agreement.

                                   ARTICLE 14

                    AMENDMENT, MODIFICATION, AND TERMINATION

         14.1 Amendment, Modification, And Termination. With the approval of the
Board, at any time and from time to time, the Committee may terminate, amend or
modify the Plan; provided, however, that (a) to the extent necessary and
desirable to comply with any applicable law, regulation, or stock exchange rule,
the Company shall obtain stockholder approval of any Plan amendment in such a
manner and to such a degree as required, and (b) stockholder approval is
required for any amendment to the Plan that (i) increases the number of shares
available under the Plan (other than any adjustment as provided by Article 11),
(ii) permits the Committee to grant Options with an exercise price that is below
Fair Market Value on the date of grant, (iii) permits the Committee to extend
the exercise period for an Option beyond ten years from the date of grant, or
(iv) results in a material increase in benefits or a change in eligibility
requirements. Notwithstanding any provision in this Plan to the contrary, absent
approval of the stockholders of the Company, no Option may be amended to reduce
the per share exercise price of the shares subject to such Option below the per
share exercise price as of the date the Option is granted and, except as
permitted by Article 11, no Option may be granted in exchange for, or in
connection with, the cancellation or surrender of an Option having a higher per
share exercise price.

         14.2 Awards Previously Granted. No termination, amendment, or
modification of the Plan shall adversely affect in any material way any Award
previously granted pursuant to the Plan without the prior written consent of the
Participant.

                                   ARTICLE 15

                               GENERAL PROVISIONS

         15.1 No Rights to Awards. No Participant, employee, or other person
shall have any claim to be granted any Award pursuant to the Plan, and neither
the Company nor the Committee is obligated to treat Participants, employees, and
other persons uniformly.

         15.2 No Stockholders Rights. No Award gives the Participant any of the
rights of a stockholder of the Company unless and until shares of Stock are in
fact issued to such person in connection with such Award.

         15.3 Withholding. The Company or any Subsidiary shall have the
authority and the right to deduct or withhold, or require a Participant to remit
to the Company, an amount
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sufficient to satisfy federal, state, local and foreign taxes (including the
Participant's employment tax obligations) required by law to be withheld with
respect to any taxable event concerning a Participant arising as a result of
this Plan. The Committee may in its discretion and in satisfaction of the
foregoing requirement allow a Participant to elect to have the Company withhold
shares of Stock otherwise issuable under an Award (or allow the return of shares
of Stock) having a Fair Market Value equal to the sums required to be withheld.
Notwithstanding any other provision of the Plan, the number of shares of Stock
which may be withheld with respect to the issuance, vesting, exercise or payment
of any Award (or which may be repurchased from the Participant of such Award
within six months after such shares of Stock were acquired by the Participant
from the Company) in order to satisfy the Participant's federal, state, local
and foreign income and payroll tax liabilities with respect to the issuance,
vesting, exercise or payment of the Award shall be limited to the number of
shares which have a Fair Market Value on the date of withholding or repurchase
equal to the aggregate amount of such liabilities based on the minimum statutory
withholding rates for federal, state, local and foreign income tax and payroll
tax purposes that are applicable to such supplemental taxable income.

         15.4 No Right to Employment or Services. Nothing in the Plan or any
Award Agreement shall interfere with or limit in any way the right of the
Company or any Subsidiary to terminate any Participant's employment or services
at any time, nor confer upon any Participant any right to continue in the employ
or service of the Company or any Subsidiary.

         15.5 Unfunded Status of Awards. The Plan is intended to be an
"unfunded" plan for incentive compensation. With respect to any payments not yet
made to a Participant pursuant to an Award, nothing contained in the Plan or any
Award Agreement shall give the Participant any rights that are greater than
those of a general creditor of the Company or any Subsidiary.

         15.6 Indemnification. To the extent allowable pursuant to applicable
law, each member of the Committee or of the Board shall be indemnified and held
harmless by the Company from any loss, cost, liability, or expense that may be
imposed upon or reasonably incurred by such member in connection with or
resulting from any claim, action, suit, or proceeding to which he or she may be
a party or in which he or she may be involved by reason of any action or failure
to act pursuant to the Plan and against and from any and all amounts paid by him
or her in satisfaction of judgment in such action, suit, or proceeding against
him or her; provided he or she gives the Company an opportunity, at its own
expense, to handle and defend the same before he or she undertakes to handle and
defend it on his or her own behalf. The foregoing right of indemnification shall
not be exclusive of any other rights of indemnification to which such persons
may be entitled pursuant to the Company's Certificate of Incorporation or
Bylaws, as a matter of law, or otherwise, or any power that the Company may have
to indemnify them or hold them harmless.

         15.7 Relationship to other Benefits. No payment pursuant to the Plan
shall be taken into account in determining any benefits pursuant to any pension,
retirement, savings, profit sharing, group insurance, welfare or other benefit
plan of the Company or any Subsidiary except to the extent otherwise expressly
provided in writing in such other plan or an agreement thereunder.

         15.8 Expenses. The expenses of administering the Plan shall be borne by
the Company and its Subsidiaries.
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         15.9 Titles and Headings. The titles and headings of the Sections in
the Plan are for convenience of reference only and, in the event of any
conflict, the text of the Plan, rather than such titles or headings, shall
control.

         15.10 Fractional Shares. No fractional shares of Stock shall be issued
and the Committee shall determine, in its discretion, whether cash shall be
given in lieu of fractional shares or whether such fractional shares shall be
eliminated by rounding up or down as appropriate.

         15.11 Limitations Applicable to Section 16 Persons. Notwithstanding any
other provision of the Plan, the Plan, and any Award granted or awarded to any
Participant who is then subject to Section 16 of the Exchange Act, shall be
subject to any additional limitations set forth in any applicable exemptive rule
under Section 16 of the Exchange Act (including any amendment to Rule 16b-3 of
the Exchange Act) that are requirements for the application of such exemptive
rule. To the extent permitted by applicable law, the Plan and Awards granted or
awarded hereunder shall be deemed amended to the extent necessary to conform to
such applicable exemptive rule.

         15.12 Government and Other Regulations. The obligation of the Company
to make payment of awards in Stock or otherwise shall be subject to all
applicable laws, rules, and regulations, and to such approvals by government
agencies as may be required. The Company shall be under no obligation to
register pursuant to the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, any of the shares
of Stock paid pursuant to the Plan. If the shares paid pursuant to the Plan may
in certain circumstances be exempt from registration pursuant to the Securities
Act of 1933, as amended, the Company may restrict the transfer of such shares in
such manner as it deems advisable to ensure the availability of any such
exemption.

         15.13 Governing Law. The Plan and all Award Agreements shall be
construed in accordance with and governed by the laws of the State of Delaware.

                                    * * * * *
         I hereby certify that the foregoing Plan was duly adopted by the Board
of Directors of IDEX Corporation on February 2, 2005.

                                    * * * * *
         I hereby certify that the foregoing Plan was approved by the
stockholders of IDEX Corporation on March 22, 2005.

                                    * * * * *
         I hereby certify that the foregoing Plan was amended by the Board of
Directors of IDEX Corporation on February 12, 2007.

         Executed as of the 12th day of February, 2007.

                                               /s/ Frank J. Notaro
                                   ---------------------------------------------
                                               Corporate Secretary
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                                                                    EXHIBIT 31.1

     CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE
                           SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Lawrence D. Kingsley, certify that:

1.  I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of IDEX Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a
material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements
made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not
misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial
information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as
of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for
establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial
reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the
registrant and we have:

     a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such
     disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
     ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
     consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
     entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being
     prepared;

     b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such
     internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
     supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
     financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
     external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
     principles;

     c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and
     procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
     effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of
     the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

     d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control
     over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent
     fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an
     annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
     materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial
     reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our
most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of
directors (or persons performing the equivalent function):

     a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or
     operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
     likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process,
     summarize and report financial information; and

     b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other
     employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control
     over financial reporting.

May 7, 2007                              /s/ Lawrence D. Kingsley  
                                         --------------------------------------
                                         Lawrence D. Kingsley
                                         Chairman, President and Chief
                                         Executive Officer
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                                                                    EXHIBIT 31.2

        CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER PURSUANT TO SECTION 302
                        OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Dominic A. Romeo, certify that:

1.  I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of IDEX Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a
material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements
made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not
misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial
information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as
of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for
establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial
reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the
registrant and we have:

     a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such
     disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
     ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
     consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
     entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being
     prepared;

     b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such
     internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
     supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
     financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
     external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
     principles;

     c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and
     procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
     effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of
     the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

     d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control
     over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent
     fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an
     annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
     materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial
     reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our
most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of
directors (or persons performing the equivalent function):

     a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or
     operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
     likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process,
     summarize and report financial information; and

     b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other
     employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control
     over financial reporting.

May 7, 2007                          /s/  Dominic A. Romeo
                                     ------------------------------------------
                                     Dominic A. Romeo
                                     Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
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                                                                    EXHIBIT 32.1

                    CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

      Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as created by Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, the undersigned officer of IDEX Corporation (the
"Company") hereby certifies, to such officer's knowledge, that:

       (i) the accompanying Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of the Company for the
       quarterly period ended March 31, 2007 (the "Report") fully complies with
       the requirements of Section 13(a) or Section 15(d), as applicable, of the
       Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and

       (ii) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all
       material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of
       the Company.

May 7, 2007                   /s/   Lawrence D. Kingsley 
                              ------------------------------------------------
                              Lawrence D. Kingsley
                              Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer
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                                                                    EXHIBIT 32.2

                    CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

    Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as created by Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, the undersigned officer of IDEX Corporation (the
"Company") hereby certifies, to such officer's knowledge, that:

       (i) the accompanying Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of the Company for the
       quarterly period ended March 31, 2007 (the "Report") fully complies with
       the requirements of Section 13(a) or Section 15(d), as applicable, of the
       Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and

       (ii) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all
       material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of
       the Company.

May 7, 2007                     /s/  Dominic A. Romeo            
                                -----------------------------------------------
                                Dominic A. Romeo
                                Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
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